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INDEPENDENT AUPITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of TP Northern Odisha Distribution Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of TP Northern Odisha Distribution Limited
("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit
and Loss, including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the period then ended (from date of incorporation March 20, 2021
to March 31, 2022), and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act™ in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its
profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements' section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2022. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
f material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of audit procedures performed by
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Key audit matters

\ How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Expected Credit Loss on trade receivables (refer note no 12 of the financial statements)

The Company has outstanding gross trade
receivables of INR 299.69 Crores as at March
31, 2022 including overdue/ aged
receivables. '

The Company supplies electricity to various
types of customers including individual
customers with wide ranging characteristics
in the Northern Odisha. There exists inherent
exposure to credit risk for these customers.
Since, the business was recently acquired by
the Company, limited past experiences are
available to estimate credit loss allowance.

In the absence of availability of adequate and
relevant past data related to payment
behaviours, the Company has elected to
recognise Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
allowance on trade receivables as per the
tariff requlations, i.e., @ 1% of revenue from
power supply.

ECL Allowance for trade receivables is a key
audit matter considering the significance of
the amount, estimations and the significant
judgements involved in the assessment.

Our audit procedures included the following:

e Obtained an understanding of the process and
tested the internal controls associated with the
management's assessment of determining ECL
allowance for trade receivables.

e Obtained an understanding of the management
plan and steps being taken to collect overdue/
aged receivables

e Evaluated management's assessment of
recoverability of the outstanding receivables
including recoverability of overdue / aged
receivables through inguiry with management,
and analysis of recent collection trends in respect
of recejvables particularly aged and pre-
acquisition receivables.

s Evaluated management’'s assumption and
judgment relating to collection considering
business environment in which the Company
operates and rights available with the Company to
recover amount due from customers for
estimating the amount of loss allowance.

s« Assessed the disclosures in the financial
statements

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board report, but does not include the financial statements

and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
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Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safequarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

> Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safequards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

ks

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in

the “Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books ;

(©) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;
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(d)

(e)

6))

@

(h)

iil.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration, if any, for the period ended March 31,
2022 has been paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 36 to the financial statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other person or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
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(¢) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any
material misstatement.

v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the period by the Company.

ForSRBC&COLLP For SRB & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003 ICAl Firm Registration Number: 310009E

(s

per Vishal Bansal per R S Sahoo

Partner _ Partner

Membership Number: 097546 Membership Number: 53960
UDIN: 22097546A1ALJG3278 UDIN: 22053960AIAIR08871
Mumbai Bhubaneswar

April 28, 2022 April 28, 2022
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date

Re: TP Northern Odisha Distribution Limited (“the Company'’)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we state that:

@M

(i)

(a

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles
assets.

(b) All Property, Plant and Equipment acquired as on April 1, 2021, were physically
verified by the management during the period. Management has represented that it has plan
to conduct physical verification for remaining items of property, plant and equipments and
capital work in progress (CWIP) in the subsequent years. This is in accordance with a planned
programme of verifying them once in three years which is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

©) The Company does not hold any land in its name. As regard the buildings, thereon, the
Company retains the operational right over the buildings used for the purpose of carrying out
distribution business under a license granted by the Odisha Electricity Regulatory
Commission. Thus, verification of title deeds is not applicable for such buildings.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets
during the period ended March 31, 2022.

(e There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules
made thereunder.

(a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory during the period
and in our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by the management is
appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were not
noticed on such physical verification,

(b) As disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks during the period
on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. The Company has not been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from financial
institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of security of current assets. The

are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.
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Gii)

(@iv)

@ During the period, the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of
loans, stood quarantee or provided security to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships
or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)Xa) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the period, the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees,
provided security and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) As per terms of vesting order for acquisition of business, a loan to another Company
was transferred where the schedule for repayment of principal and payment of interest has
not been stipulated. The loan has been repaid in full before the period end. Post acquisition,
the Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the period. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) As per terms of vesting order for acquisition of business, a loan to another Company
was transferred where the schedule for repayment of principal and payment of interest has
not been stipulated. The loan has been repaid in full before the year end. Post acquisition, the
Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the period. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) As per terms of vesting order for acquisition of business, a loan to another Company
was transferred where the schedule for repayment of principal and payment of interest has
not been stipulated. The loan has been repaid in full before the year end. Post acquisition, the
Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the period. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ii)e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) As per terms of vesting order for acquisition of business, a loan to another Company
was transferred where the schedule for repayment of principal and payment of interest has
not been stipulated. The loan has been repaid in full before the period end. Post acquisition,
the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security given by the Company post-

acquisition of business in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.
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W) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and
the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the
rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013, related to the service of distribution of electricity, and are of the opinion
that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not,
however, made a detailed examination of the same.

(vii)

(@) Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, income-
tax, employees' state insurance, cess and other statutory dues have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in a few cases.
The provisions of duty of custom is not applicable to the Company. According to the
information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us,
undisputed dues in respect of goods and services tax and other statutory dues which were
outstanding, at the period end, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable, are as follows:

Statement of Arrears of Statutory Dues Outstanding for More than Six Months

Name of the Nature Amount Period to Due Date Date
Statute of the in INR which the Payment
Dues amount
relates
Goods and Goods 19,14,396 April 2021 May 20, 2021
Service Tax Act and
! 11,911,402
2017 Service May 2021 June 20, 2021
Tax 15.54,374 | June 2021 July 20, 2021 | April
2022
9,65,588 | July 2021 | August 20, 2021
14,79,013 | August 2021 | September 20,
2021
The Building And | Labour 2,69,588 | March2021 | April 30,2021 | April 25,
Other Cess 2022

Construction
Workers' Welfare
Cess Act, 1996
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(b) The dues of services tax and income tax that have not been deposited on account of
any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of the | INRin crores Period Forum where
Statute dues the dispute is
pending
The Finance Act, | Service tax 25.34 FY 2014-15 to | Principal
1994 Fy 2017-18 Commissicner,
CGST
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 44.73 FY 2016-17 | Commissioner
1961 and FY 2017- | (Appeals)
18 Income Tax

There are no dues of goods and services tax, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales-
tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues which have
not been déeposited on account of any dispute.

(viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the period.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

@ix)
@ The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority.

) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the
requirement to report on clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

@ On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised
on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

® The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on Clause 3(ixXf) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x)

(@) The Company has not raised any money during the period by way of initial public offer
/ further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause
300)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company
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) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
/fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the period under audit and
hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)}(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xi)
(a) No fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the period.

(b) During the period, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (as amended) has been filed by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form
ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures

(xii)
@) The Company is not a Nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(as amended). Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xiiXa) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not a Nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(as amended). Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

© The Company is not a Nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(as amended). Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xiiXc) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 (as amended) where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)
@) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of
its business.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for
the period under audit have been considered by us.

(xv)  The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Ordeg#
applicable to the Company.
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(xvi)
(@ The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are
not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of
India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made
by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Group has five CICs which are registered with the Reserve Bank of India and one
CIC which is not required to be registered with the Reserve Bank of India.

(xvi) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current period.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the period and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix)  On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to
our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

Ox)

@ In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are
required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VI of the Companies Act (as
amended), in compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This
matter has been disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements.

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be
transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135
of Companies Act (as amended). This matter has been disclosed in note 31 to the financial
statements.
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(xxi) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

UDIN: 22097546AIALJG3278
Mumbai
April 28, 2022

For SRB & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 310009E

per R S Sahoo
Partner
Membership Number: 53960
UDIN: 22053260AI1AIR08871
Bhubaneswar

April 28, 2022
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (1) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of TP Northern
Odisha Distribution Limited (“the Company") as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the period ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“1CAI")].
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013 (as amended).

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note")
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAl Those Standards and the Guidance Nofe
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

Ve believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

ForSRBC&COLLP For SRB & Associates
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
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TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED

CIN:UADL nsnnzn:u‘su:n_sm:
Janugan] Balasore Odisha, India, 756019
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3ist MARCH, 2022

A. ASSETS
(1) Non-currant assets

(2] Property, plant-and equipment
{b) Capital wark-in-progress

{£) Intangible assets

[d} Financial asgats

{e) Non-current kax assets

(1) Othar non= Eurrant assats

Total non-current assets

(2) Current assets

(2} Inventories.

£b} Financial assats
{1} Tradw recslvables
(i) Unbilled raceivables
{Iif) Cash and cash eguivalents
(iv) Bank balances ather than (fit) abave
() Other firancial asssts

[£) Dthas current asseis

Total current assets

{3) Regulatory deferral account - asset
(4) Total assets (1+2+3)

B, EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(0} Equity share capital
() Other equity

Total equity

LIABILITIES
(1) Non-current liabilities

() Provisions,

i) Contributlan towards capital assets
() Daferrad tax habilities [net)

(d) Otker non-current liabilities:

Total non-current liabilities

(2) Current Habilities

(&) Finencial ahbilities
{1} Borrowinas
11y Trade payabies
Total dutstanding duesiof micro sntarprises:and small entérprises and
Total outstanding dues of creditor ather than micrp enterprises and small ‘Enterprises

LIy ‘Cther finandla |annua
() Brovisions
() Other current fabiliting:
Totzl current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Asat
NOTEND 31t March, 2022
¥ In Crore

4 1,546.42
5 164.67.
5 18:26
7 422.92
k] 29,78
] 78,25
2,260.30

1l 14,15
12 274.13
227,52

13 154,71
13 711.92
14 10.86

5 2003

1,413.32

25 22.58
3,696.20
15 204,94
7 73.83
368.87

18 133.21
18 953.96
g 10.92
20 497.28
1,595.37

b3 226,72
22 18.92
=2 51779
23 ‘880,98
i8 14.59
24 2,96
1,731.96

3& 65.20

As per our report of even date

ForSRBCECOLLP

Partner’
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TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED

CIN:U401090R2021PLC0O35951

Januganj Balasore Odisha,India, 756019

Website: www.tpnodl.com

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31st MARCH 2022

NOTE Period ended
NO 31st March 2022
¥ in Crore

1 Revenue from operations 26 2,749.65
1T Other income 27 45.60
III Total income (I+I1) 2,795.25
IV, Expenses

Cost of power purchased and transmission charges 28 1,836.76

Employee benefits expense 29 438.79

Finance costs: 30 45,23

Depreciation and amortisation expensa 4 &b 89.34

Other expenses 31 261.16

Total expenses (IV) 2,669.28
V. Profit / (Loss) before movement in regulatory deferral balance
and tax 125.97

Add/(Less): Net movement in regulatory deferral balances 25 (27.19)
VI Profit/(loss) before tax '98.78
VII Tax Expenses

(1) Current tax 32 13.94

(2} Deferred tax 32 ip,92
VIII Profit/ (loss) for the period (VI-VII) 73.92
IX Other comprehensive income/(Expenses) 33 -
X. Total other comprehensive income/(expense) -
XI Total comprehensive income for the period (VIII+X) 73.92
XII Earnings per equity share {face value ¥ 10/- aach) )

Earnings Per Equity Share (Excluding Regulatory income/(expense) (net))

Basic and Diluted (in 3) 36 3.75

Earnings Per Equity Share (including Regulatory incoma/(expanse) (net))

Basic and Piluted (in ©) 36 2.94

See accompanying notes forming part of financial statements

Asper our réport of even date

ForSRBC &CO LLP
Chartered Accountants

Place: Mumbal

For and on behalf of the Board of
TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED

|

Praveer Sinha
Director
DIN:01785164
ce: Murmnbai

Bhaskar Sarkar
Chief Executive Dfficer {CED)
Place: Balasore

Date: 28th April, 2022

For SRB & Associates

Chartered Accountants

ICATI FRN! E310009E
er'R § Sahoo

Partner
Place: Bhubaneswar

Sanjay Kumar Banga
Director

DIN: 37785948

Place: Mumbaij

1]
Lo L.
Siladitva Sengqup i
Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
Place; Balasore




TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
CIN:U401090R2021PLCO35951
Januganj Balasore Odisha,India, 756019
Website: www.tpnodl.com

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31st MARCH 2022

Accounting Policy

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the year is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments
and item of Income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows, The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. The Company considers all highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.

Period Ended

Particulars 31ist March 2022
¥ in Crore
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax 98.78
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense 89.34
Interest on Security Deposit 26.25
Interest on Loan 18.98
Interest income (34.46)
Amartization of consumer cantribution (65.52)
Amortisation of goverment grants in capital nature {D.20)
Amortisation of goverment grants in revenue nature {12.71)

Operating profit before working capital changes

Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in operating assets:

Inventories 2.93
Trade receivables (274.13)
Unbilled revenue (227.52)
Other financial assets - current (3.80)
Other current assets 11.93
Other financial assets - non current 5.19
Other non-current assets (61.88)
Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables 486.25
Other financial liabilities - current 73.72
Other current liabilities 39.86
Other non-current liabilities (19.01)
Provision - non current 133.21
Provision - current 14,58
Regulatory deferral account- Liability (22.58)
Cash generated from operations 279.42
Taxes paid (16.08)
Net Cash Flows from in Operating Activities (A) 263.34

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment (including capital work in

pragress and capital advances but net of capital creditors) (228.69)
Capital expenditure on intangible asset (16.42)
Interest received 34,46
Deposits with banks not considered as cash and cash equivalents, (364.64)
/Vﬁ“'ﬁ\\ Net Cash Flow used in Investing Activities (B) (578.30)

N\




TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
CIN:U401090R2021PLC0O35951
Januganj Balasore Odisha,India,756019
Website: www.tpnodi.com

Period Ended
Particulars 31ist March 2022
T in Crore

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Issuance of share capital for consideration in cash 22.92
Interest paid (20.52)
Met proceeds from slectricity consumer security deposit 11,39
Proceeds from government grants 181.16
Proceeds from consumer contribution 101.66
Proceeds from contribution for capital works 9.76
Net proceeds/ (Repayment) from short-term borrowings (143.33)
Net cash from financing activities (C) 163.04
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (151.92)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired on business combination 306.63
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 154.71

Non-cash financing and investing activities:

Issuance of equity shares for Considerations other than Cash (Refer Note 16) 22.02

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN: 324882E/ E300003

per Vishal Bansal~
Partner
Place: Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of
TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED

N

Praveer Sinha
Director

DIN:01785164
Place: Mumbai

Bhaskar Sarkar

Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
Place: Balasore

Date: 28th April, 2022

For SRB & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN: E310009E

(T ol ,L/

per R S Sahoo
Partner
Place: Bhubaneswar

Sanjay Kumar Banga
Director
DIN:07785948

Place: Mumbai

Lladipn L '
Siladitya Sengupta

Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
Place: Balasore




TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
CIN:U401090R2021PLCO35951
Januganj Balasore Odisha,India, 756019
Website: www.tpnodl.com

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31st MARCH 2022

A. Equity Share Capital

No of Shares Amopunt

Particulars in Crores % in Crores
Issued during the period 29.49 294.94
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 29.49 294.94
B. Other Equity
Particulars Retained Earnings Total

¥ in Crores % in Crores
Profit for the period 7392 73.92
Other Comprehensive Income for the period (Net) = -
Total comprehensive income 73.92 73.92
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 73.92 73.92 _

As per our réport of even date

D LLP
E300003
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Chief Executive Officer (CEQ)
Place: Balasore

Date: 28th April, 2022
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er'R S Sahoo
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Place: Bhubaneswar

Sanjay Kumar Banga
Director
DIN:07785948

Place: Mumbal
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Siladitya e?-lgu

Chief Financial Officer (CFOY

Place: Balasore




TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
CIN:U401090R2021PLCO35951
Januganj Balasore Odisha,India, 756019
Website: www.tpnodl.com

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE L
General Information

TP NORTHERN QDISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED ("TPNDDL" or the "Company”) is a public limited company, domiciled ard incerporated in India
and is engaged In the business of distribution of electricity In Norther Odisha, The Company has been Incorborated on March 20, 2021 under the
Companies Act, 2013 (as amended). Pursuant to vesting arder (ssued by the Ddisha Electricity Regulatory Commission ('OERC') dated March 25,
32024, the Company acquited the business of distributing pewer in Northem Odisha (‘business’) from the NESTO (Northern Electricity Supply
Company of Odisha Limited & NESCO utility) with =ffact from April 1, 2021 (vesting date), Accordingly, the Company s 2 licensee to carry out the
function of distribution and retail supply of electricity covering the distribution circles of Balasore, Bhadralk, Baripada, Jajpur and Keonjhar in the
state of Qdisha for 2 period of 25 years effective from April 1, 2021, which-alss marked the commencement of commercial eperations for the
Company.

The registered office of the company is located at The Corporate Office OF NESCO, Januganj Balasore, Odisha 756019,

The Company is subsidiary of The Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL) which holds 51% equity shares and balance 49% equity shares are hald
by GRIDCO Ltd,

NOTE 2

2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified under the Companies
(Ihdian Accounting Standacds) Riules, 2015 read with saction 133 of the Companiss Act, 2013 (as amended from time to time). The
Company also applies requiremment of Division L1 bf Schedule [T of the Companies Act,2013 while presenting financial statements, During
the year, the company has adopted amendments to the said Schedule ULThe application of these requirements do not impart
recognition anl measurement in financial statements. However,it has resulted in additional disclosure which are glven undar various
notes.

Financial statements are préparad for the period from date of incorporation, vie., March 20, 2021 to March 31, 2022, Since the Cormpany
has been formed during the perind, therg is no'comparative information.

2.2 Basis of preparation and presentation )
The Ind AS Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which have
been measured-at fair value

- certaln financial assets and [fabllities measured at fair value (Refer accounting policy regarding fimancial instruments):

- defined benefit plan related assets and lishilities |Refer accounting policy for defined benefit plans)
Historical cost is the-amount of cash or cash equivalents paid-or the fair value of the consideration given to acquire assets at the time of
theiracquisition or the amount of proceeds received in exchange for the obllgation, or the amounts of cash or cash equivalents expected
to be paid to satisfy the-liability in the normal course of business.
Fair value is the price that would be raceived to sell an asset or paid to transfer a [jability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.
The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearast crores (INR/00,00,000), except when otherwise
indicated.
The eampany has prepared the-financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going concern.

NOTE 3 )
Other significant accounting policies

Accounting policies are set out along with respective explanatory notes where it specifically relates to such transactions or balances. Other
significant accounting policies are set out below!

3.1 Foreign currencies )
These financjal statements are presented in Indian Rupee (), which is the functional currency of the Compeny. The functional currency
represents the currency of the primary economic enviranment jn which the Company operates.

Transactions' In forelgn currencies are recorded at ‘exchange rates prevailling of the date of the transaction. Foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate pravailing ‘'on the Balance Sheet date and exchange
gains and losses arising on setth:ment and restatement are récognised In the Statement of Praﬁt and Loss,

3.2 Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and |iabilities in the balance shéet based on currant /' non-cUrrant classification. An asset treated as
curkent when It is: ' )
- expected to be realisad or intended to be sold or consumed In normal operating cyele,
- held primarily for the purpose of trading,
= expacted to be realised within twelve months aftar the reporting penud or
- cash or cash equivalent unless restricted fram being exchanged or used to seftle a liability for at least twelve months after tha
reporting period.
All other assats are classified as non-current

A fiability I5 curr=nt when:
- it Is expacted to be settled in narmal operating cycle,
- itls held primarily for the purpese ‘of trading,
- it (s due to be settled within twelve menths after the ‘reporting period, or
- thers is no unconditional right to defer the settfemant of the liability for at least twelve months afte| the reporting perind.
The Company classifies all sther liabilitizs as nan-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are cfassified as nan-current assets anmd liabilities.
The aperating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation In cash and cash equlvalents, The

Company has identifiad twelve months as its op=srating cycle.
/—? z\\
2




TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
CIN:U401090R2021PLCD35951
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33

3.4.1

3.4.2

3.4.3

Financial instruments )

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to 3 financial asset of ane entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

Financlal assets and financial lisbllities are recognised when the Company becames a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Except for trade receivables, financlal assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Trade recelvables are measured
at the transaction price, Transaction costs that are dirsctly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deductad from the fair value of the financlal
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs: directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profitiand Loss.

Effective interest method

The effective Interest method is a miethod of calcllating the amortised cast 'of a finaricial Instrument and of allocating interest income of
sxpense ovar the rejevant period, The efféctive Intersst rate Is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or payrments thiough
the expected life of the financlal instrument, or wherz appropriate, 2 shorter periad.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and deracognised on 3 trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require dellvery of assats within the time frame established by regulation or
canvention In the market place,

All recognised financial assets are siubsequently measurad in their antirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financlal assats.

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial assat shall be measured at amortisad cost using effective interest rates if both of the following conditions are meat:

(1) financial asset Is hald withih 8 business model whose objettive is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows;
and

(i) contractual tarms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at FVTPL Include financial assets that sither do not mest the criteria for amortised cost and/ or fair value through other
comprahansive Income (FVTOCI) classification orf arg squity instriments Meld for trading or that mest certain conditions and are
designated at FYTPL Upon |nitial recognition, All derivative financial Instruments also fall into this category, éxcept for thoss designated
and affective as hedgmg Instrurnenr,s, for which the hedge accounting requirements may apply. Assets in this category are measurad at
fair value with gains or losses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The fair values of financial assets In this category are
determined by reference to active market transactions or using a valuation tachnique where no active market exists,

A financial asset is held for trading if:

(i) it has peen acquired principally for the purpose of selling it In the near tarm; or )

(i) on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instrurnents that the Company manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

{iii) it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantes.

Dividends o these investrients In equity instruments are recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss when the Company's right to
recalve the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the
dividend does rot represént a recovary of part of cost of the investmant and the ambunt of dividend can be measured raliably, Dividends
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss are included in the "Other income’ line item.The company does not have any financial
assets measured at fair value through profit & loss.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCY)

A finsnciz| ssset is subsequently measured at fair value through ather comprahensive income if it is heald within: = business modal wheose
objective Is achieved by both collecting contractual cashflows and sefling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cashilows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recogpition, the Company can make an irreviacable alection (on an lhstrument-by-instrumeant basis) to present the subsequent
thanges In fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investmants in equity instruments. This election is not parmittad If the
equity investment Is held for trading, These elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, Subsequently,
they are measured at fair value with gajns and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the 'Reserve for equity instruments through ather comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or loss Is not reclassified
to the Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of the investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

(}} it has been acqu:red principally for the purpose of selling it in the niear tarm; or

{ii) on initial recognition it ispart of 3 portfalic of identified financial instrumants that the Company manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

(iii) it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee.

Dividends on these Investiments in gquity instruments are recagpised In the Statement of Profit and Loss when the Campany’s Fight to.

receive the dividends s established, It is probable that the ecanomic benefits assotiated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the
dividend does not répresent a recovary of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured raliably. Dividends
recognised in the Statemant of Profit and Loss are included In the *Other jnceme’ lina itam.




TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
CIN:U401090R2021PLCO35951
Januganj Balasore Odisha,India, 756019
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.4.4

3.4.5

3.5
3.5.1

3.5.2

3.5.3

Impairment of financial asset
The Campany applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost,
trade receivabies and other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset not designated as at FVTPL.

For trade recelvatiles or any contractual right to recelve cash or anather ﬁnanc!al asset that result from transactions that are within the
scope of Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”, the Company always measuras the |oss allowance at an amount 2qual te
lifatime expected credit lossas using the simplified approach permitted under Ind AS 109 "Financial Instruments",

Expectad crodit losses are the weighted average of credit [osses with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. Cradit loss
Is the diffsrerice betwesn all contractual cash flows that are due te the Compary in-accordance with the contract and &l the cash flows
that the Company expacts to receive (l.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted
affactive interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired finapcial assets). The Company estimates cash flows by considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for 2xample, prepaymant, sxtension, call and similar options) thmugn the expected life of
that financial instrument.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetirhe expected cradit ldss allowance for trade racelvables, the Company has used a practical
axpadient as permitied under Ind A5 109. This expected cradit loss allowance is computed bas=d on management's best astimate at the
reporting date.

Derecognition of financial asset
The Company derecognisas a finarcial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, of when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially transfers all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another partv

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and eqyity instrumants issued by the Company are classified as alther financial ligbilities ar as Equlty in accordance with the
‘substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial lability and an equity lnstrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual Interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its Jiabliities.

Incramental ms!s directly attributable to the issuance of new nrdinarv shares and share options are recognized as 2 deduction from

‘aquity, net of any tax effects.

Financial liability
All financial liabllities sre-subseguently measured at amortised cost using the sffective interast method.

3.5.3.1 Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabllities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at' FVTPL are medsured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent reporting periads, The carrying amourits of financial lisbilities that are subsequently measursd at amortised cost are
determinad based on the effective interest methad.

The effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a i nancial liability and of allocating interest eXpense gver
the relevant reporting period. The effective interast rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated futurs cash payments ( including all
fees paid or recelved that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums er discounts) through
the expected life of the financial llability, or (whers appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on jnitial racegnition.

3.5.3.2 Derecognition of financial liabilities

3.6

The Company derecognises financisl liabilities wher, and ‘only when, tha Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
sxpired. An exchange with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liabllity. The différence betweer the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is racognhised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Fair value measurement

Fair value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability inan orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurament date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction ta sell the assat or
transfar the lability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or llabjlity, or

- In the absence of a principal market, In the most advantagseus market for the assat or liability.

The principal or the maost advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability Is-measursd
using the assumptians that market participants would use when pricing the asset ar liability, assuming that market partic[panrs act in
their economic best interest. A falr value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account @ market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it tp another market participant that would use
the asset in its highest and best use.
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3.10

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are avallabie to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant obiservable inputs-and minimising the use of unobsenvable jnputs.

All assets and llabllities for which fair valle is measured or disclosed In the financial staternents are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, basad on the lowest lsvzl [nput that is significant to the falr value measuremeant as a whole:

- level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markats for identical assats or liabilities.

- Leval 2 — Valuation tachnigues for which the lowest |evel input that is significant to the falr value messurament is directly or indirgctly
observable, )

- llevel 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level inpur that s significant to the fair value measurament is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised In the financial statements on a recurring basis, the company determines whether trapsfers
have eourrad betwean levels In thie hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the =nd of each reporting perisd,

External valvers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and other assets/ liabilities acquired as part of
business combinatian.

Lease Accounting

At inception of contract, the Company assesses whether the Contract is or contains a lease. A contract is or contains a lease if the
contract conveys the right to contral the use of an |dentified asset fora period of time in exchange for consideration. At inception oron
reassessmant of @ contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates consideration in the contract to each lease
comparient on the basis of their relative standalone prica.

As & Lessee

Right-of-use Assets

The Campany recognises right-of-use assets at the commencemant date of the |ease. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, |ess any
accurnulated depreciation and impatrment lnsses , and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities, The cost of nght-of-use
asséts includes the amount of lease liabllities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or before the
commancement date less any lease incentives received and estirnate of costs to dismantle. Right-of-<use assets are depreciated on a
stiaight-line basis aver theshortar of the Isase terim and the estimated vseful lives of the assets.

Lease Liabilities )

At the commencement date of the |ease, the Company recoanises |ease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company generally uses |5 incremental barrowing
rate-at the lease commencement date if the discount rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable,

After the cammencement date, the amount of lease liabilities |s increased to raflect the accretion of Interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. The carrying amount is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments ‘arising from a change in index or
rate. In additior, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
the lease payments or @ change in the assessment of an option te purchase the underlying asset.

Short term leases and leases of low value of assets

The Company applies the shorf-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases. It also applies the lease of low-value assets
recognition exemption that are considerad to be low value. Lease payments an short-term leases and leases of low valus assets are
recognised as sxpense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Dividend
Final dividends on shares are recorded 'as a llabllity on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a
lizbility on tha date of declaration by'the Campany's Board of Directors.

Government grants
Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be recelved, and all attached conditions wil|

be complied with. Where the grant relates fo a specified asset, it is recognized as deferred income, and amortized over the sxpected
useful life of the assat, Other grants ralating to revenue expenditure are recognized as incame |n the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations, except those under common control, are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferrsd measured at acguisition date fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed-as incurrad.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabliities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date fair values,
For this purpose, the liabilities: assumed include contingant liabilities representing present obligation and they are measumﬂ at thair
acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources ambodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the
following assetsand liabilities acquired in 2 business combination ars measured at the basis indicated below:

- Daferred tax assets or liabilities, and the liabllities or assets related to employes benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accardance with Ind AS 12 Intome Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Bengfits respactively.

- Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that axist at the acquisition date or arise as a result of
the acquisition are accounted in accordance With Ind AS 12.

- When the Cnmuany acquires & business, |t assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification. and
designation 1n accordance with the contractual terms. econiomic circumstancas and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date, This:
includes the separation of embedded derivatives jn hast contracts. by the acquiree,
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Goodwill |s Initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred ever the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabllities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is In excess of the aggregate consideration transferred the
Company re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the
procedures used tomeasure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the
fair value of net assets acquired over the aggredate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in
anuity as capital raserve, However, iF thera is b clear avidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as
capital raserve, without routing the same thraugh OCI.

After initial racognition, goodwill is measurad at cost |less any accumulated impairment |osses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
gogdwill acquired in & business combination is, from the acguisition date, allocated to each of the Company's cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the combingtion, Irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acyuires are assigned to those
units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impalrment annually, or mare frequently when there is an
indication that the unit may be Iimpaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is (ess than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goadwill allecated ta the unit'and then to the other assets of the
unlt pro rata based on the carrying amount of-each asset in the unit. Any impalrment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recogrised for goodwill is not reversed in subseguent periods.

if the initial accounting far a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in Which the cambination occurs, the
Company reports pruws!nnal amounts for the items for which the accounting is Jn:umpiate Those provisiohal amounts are adjusted
through goodwlll during the measuremeant period, or additional assets or liabllities are racognised, to reflect naw Informaticn obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acguisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that
date. Thess adiustments are called as measurament period adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the
acquisition date:

Changes in Ind AS and related pronouncements effective at a future date

Minisi:rv of Corpurate Affairs ("MCA™) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards upder Companies (Indian
Ar:cuur\tmg Standards) Rules as issued from time to Eime. on March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Cumpanles {Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules; 2022, applicable fram April 1st, 2022. The mangement is In the pracass of assessing the impact of thege
amendments.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements ) )
In the application of the Company's accounting policies, managamant of the Company Is raquired to make judgements, astimates and

-assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and Habilities that are not readily apparsnt from other sources. The estimates and
‘associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ

from these estimates.

The estimiates shd underlying assumptions ‘are Favigwed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to atcounting estimates-are recognised In the
period I which the estimate |s revised If the revision affects only that period, or in'the period of the ravisioh and future peripds if the
revision affects both current and future periods. Detailed information: about each of these estimates and judgerients is Included in
relevant notes tagether with information abaut the basis of calculation for each affectad line item in the financial statements.

The areas Invalving critical estimates or judgements are:

Estimation of regulatory deférral account balances
Estimation of expected credit lbss allowanca
Estimation of defined behefit obligation

Estimation of current tax and deferred tax expense
Estimation of provision and contingant liability

LR A

Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated. They are based on industrial experience and other factars, including expectations af
future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the clrcumstances,
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NOTE 4 Property, plant and equipment :
4.01 Accounting Policy :

Property, plant apd squipment is stated st cost less accumulat=d deprer:latiun and accumulated impairment lossas, if any. Cost includes
plirchass price (ret of trade discaunt angd rebates) and any diractly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its warking condition for' its
intended use and for qualifying assels, borrowing costs canltaﬂsad in accordance with the Ind AS 23, Capital work In progress |5 stated at
cost, net of accumiulated impairment lpss, If any, When signrn:ant parts of plant and squipment are required to be replacsd at intervals,
the Cumnanv depreciates them ssparately based on thalr specific usaful lives. Likewise, when a major lnspectlnn is performed, its cost is
racognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a raplacement if the recngnftlon criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are racognised In the statement of profit and loss as incurrad. Subsaguent costs are 1ncluazd in the asset’s carrying
amount or racognisad as a separate assel, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benelits associated with the jtem
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, The carrying amount of any component accounted for as @
separate assets are derecognised when replaced.

Depreciation ) )
Depreciation commences when an asset is ready for (s intended use.

Depraciation o Property, plant and equipment in raspect of eléctriclty businass of the Company tovered under Part B of Schiedule I1 of the
Companles Act, 2013, has besn provided on the straight-line method at the rates specified in vesting erder and tarif regulation riotified by
ragulatary commission,

Estimated useful lives of the Regllated assats are as follows:

Type of asset Useful lives Useful lives (New
(Assets assets acquired
transferred on | post acquisitian)
acquisition)

Bulldings } _ 50 years 27 years

Plant & Machinery including transmission lines & cable network (excluding 25 years 18 years

IT equipments & battery)

|Plant and equipment (IT Equipments) = & years

iPlant and eguipment (Batteries) = S5 years

Furpiture and fixtures 20 years 15 years:

Office equipment 10 yedrs 15 years

Mator cars 7 ysars 15 years

Basad bn the vesting ordee/ tarlff regulations, the fesidual value of the assets |s considersd at 10% of the Original Cost. The astimatad
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are raviewsd st the end of each reporting period, with the effact of any changes in
estimate accountad for on a prospective basis.

Derecognition
An item of property, plant and equipment s derecognised upan disposal or when ne futlire economic benefits are expected to arise frem
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipments s

den_a_rmined as the difference between the sajes proceeds and the carrying an_munt of the asset and is recagnised in the statement of profit
and loss.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any Indication exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an assat is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable ampunt, An Asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's or r.ash«generatlng unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recaverable
amount |s determined for an individual asset, unless the asset doss not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or group of assets. Whan the carrying amount of an asset or CGU ekcends its recoverable amount, the assot is considered
impaired and is writtan down ta its racoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax distount rate thot reflects current market assessmients of the tme valus of money and the risks specific ta
the asset, In detsérmining fair-value less costs of disposai, recent market trahsactions are taken |nith account. T no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation madel Is used. The Company bases its jmpairment caleulation on detalled budgets and forecast
calculations, which are prepared separataly for each of the Company's CGUs to which the Individual assets are allocated. Impairment loss,
if any, Is recognised in the Statament of Profit and Loss.




ZYVELY'T 86°'STL IP'661T'C iejoL
T 6% £€°9 JUSlUdinby 331y
870 16'1 97z SanIXi4 B Banjng
ST°0 680 S50 SIPIYSA 010}
‘g’ R— Jlemiau ajqeds
01°88%° 85'912 BOIPEY.S R SaU{| UOISSIWSUEN pue ABUyde B 1UBld
LF'E 4 4 BS°S sbujpling
= s puet
23jep uoijisinboe 3@
anjea Jie4/junowe uogepsidag jrojg s5049
BurAuied 12N pPREMUIN0Y sigpnonsed
TZ0T'¢0°T0 12 Sy
0DS3N wWoJj pai B 5]355Yy
EO’H 310N
Zr'9ps’T £1'88 41°88 09°'vEQ'T LT'19T ZY'ELY'T 12301
25t gzt 9¢'1 8591 LT'ST %1 juswdinba acyy0 (@)
5470 GE'D SE'Q Tt Z8'0 820 saamxy pue aanyuing  (p)
+'0 90°0 90°0 L¥0 ZED S1°0 sapmap (3)
£57E2S'T 8E'9R 8£'98 S6'809'T S8°0FT 0T°89%'T jiomiau sjged pue
saul| uolssiwisues) ‘Asuyoel pue juejd (q)
9g'L £1°0 £1°0 6F'L 20t VA2 sGuipjing ()
TTOT Yaiey Is1g ZTOT Y212 ISTE popiad ZZO0TZ YielW ISTE uoREUIGWOD
SuonRIppy ssouisng
|yl 40
ie sy ie sy d je sy 30 Jed se paJinbay Sieinopaed
}20i9 12N uoijenasdag pajejnwnaoy }20jg 55049
1 Juswdinba pue jueld ‘Ayiadosd zo'v 3LON
SaJ04) Ul 2

SINIWILVLIS IVIONVNI4 JHL 40 LHVd ONIWHOL4 SILON

wod'ipoudy mmm 231sqgam

610954 ‘Bipuy’eysipo a4osejeg [uebnuer
TS6SENDT4TZTOTHOG0TOPN:NID
QILIWIT NOILNGIYLSIA YHSIAO NHIHLYON diL




il

sjuallsie}s |RDUBLY 3y U) papayad se Auedwoe) ayl Jo asuewioyuad

|IBpueuy pue uonisod [epuell Byl wo jaedw) (euEiEw AuB BABY 10U |IM jescidde yans Jelyl $2A2(jag pue DYI0 Aul woyy |eacsdde BuiaEdas jo uapyuod s) Ausdwod ayl ‘I¥3Io
ay} Ag pauiluimap Jauuew Meudoidde saye Aug 4o Ayjigel| jueld syl o) Juswisnipe o Jusuisnipe yue aumny o Aem Aq Auedwop ayy Agq passnodas og o) psmojle ag |IM 20miny L)
PaLRU3p| Janew BUy10 Aue 4o /pue Sial]ewl aAGge Y] Jo UoMN(osal [ uoIIel|iDU0al Y] JO JUNODE U pallajsues saljijigel| pue s3asse 1o an(ea aly uj abueyd Aue Uapio BUnSIA 3 Yum
aauepsnie upjeacsdde s3) 40y DYIO AYY 0F suofiel|puodal pue suodal pies aul Buiiwans jo s5a30ad 3u3 Uy 51 Auedwion Ay ‘iBpio N0 aases pug BuisaA 10 sjuawadinbal a4y) 03 JURNSINg
) ‘uofBdYLIBA YINS U0 asue o] sanuedalnsip |eR3RW Padx3 10U Sa0p
Juawabeunw a3y eaA Bulwos ay) ul Ino paLued 3G 1M dTMD 40 uolealuaa |eaisAyd ‘Aueduion ay) Ag pajdape Adjod uoiedyuan feaisAyd ay) U0 paseqg |eUSIeIW 3G 10U (||M LONEN|BAS:
[221Lpa3 J0 uonRIdWIeD 4o Jn0 Bulsue ‘Aue 4 ‘SJUBUASNIPY '310eSN 2q M oM Jedal Alessaoau saye s1esse jeyl saaalfeq juswsabeuewl quing / pafewep / yiom Jedas oy Buipuad
/ 2Pl e PayUaPl ING S3USISIXG U] 513558 AU} Jo4 ‘PaAyuBp| usaq 2Aey sapuedaldsip [RLISIEW OU quawabelsi /Avied puy syl Ag pasedaid suopel|puosal Alessadau Bupapisuos jaye
pue Aued juapuadapul syj Ag panss! spiodal uo Paseg ‘ajep uolisinbae ayj je se Auedwo) s 0y pauafsuell Jdd 40 12adsas Ul uoReayLaA easAyd no paLued sey Apred juapusdapu) uy
‘51355 BsaY] 4O uUDEdYUBA [BISAYd Jeinbas Jo) swweibold e pawely sey Aueduion

a1 ‘uopisinboe-1sod *0JSIN JO WaLLBBRUSI 3yl AQ N0 PalE) Jou sem (dIMD) SSRuB0Ld Ul NI0Mm [23de) pue (Jdd) uswdinba pue ueid 'Apedosd jo sway) 4o uvonesyusa |e0isAlg

dIMD pue 3dd JO UoREdLIaA |edisAyd £0'Y 3LON

TTOZ Uaiel TE pepua Jead au doy pue je se Auedwng 2uy) jo ssuedsiouad [pidueUl pue uoisod
|Bjaueu bo Pedw| assape Aue BaRY 10U [IIM SIuBUal|nbady IANOOE 343 01 Juensnd ¥Hy Ul pamole uonepasdap Jamol 18y] pauiLEIap sey Juawabeurw ayy ‘anoge ayy Bupepisuod

) Juawijsnipe (y¥ay,) Wawainbay anuasay ajebaibby yBnong [jejIoys yans Moje |[1M DYI0 Y UBY) ‘sanigel| 3geas|Aas
[RUOIPPE Bsalf 193w 01 vonesijeal uj sabeyuoys Aue aue aiayl JI "sanijjigel) ajgeanialas (euofippe Bullsaw piemol vopepasdap YBnouyy pasieal junowe Aug 351N 0) padinbad
s Auedwion 2y Japio 1nQ dalen Syl pue J3p10 BufsaA 8yl Jad Sy ‘aaoqe pajess se Adljod Bununoase auy J4ad se uanenasdep pabieys sey Auedwon Y] ‘sjualIsiR)s [PIDUBUY AYY Ul

HHEY JO uojjRUIULISIRP 10) pamo|je 5q JOU |||M s1sse asaly) uo pafueyd uojenasdap
18y sapiaocad. ose sapiQ INQ dAIRD) DY puR 49pJg Bufisap au) ‘pasdisuen) uzsq JoU Sey AR jueln palapEp Buipuodsasos BU) J3AaMOY ‘Auediio] a3 0] pauaisuen usaqg
BABY S1355E asalyy 'JSpJ0 INQ AAed sl pue sapig Bunssn Ay o suis) ay) sad sy JUBID UBWILIEADD JO JN0 paiEaid Sjasse apnpu| juawdinba pue juejd ‘Auadosd sy Jo sway| syl

pallajsuesy uaaq jou sey Alljigel] Pauia0ucd 3Yj S18YM 233 ‘sjurdb JUBWILISACEH JO N0 PAJEIID SIASSY 90'F 3 LON

TAONdL AQ P3sn pUe pung WSUWHLIIAOD LI PAIEaID S]asse Op OU 810U PUB UDIBUIGUIOI SSBUISNG Jo £07RE "0OU 230U 12591 OS]y
S0°t 3LON

'saiuediunl pue uofjeasiliuipe a)iyMisie 40 WU ay) Ul 3G 6] sanuiued satuadosd ajgeAcLUL] IS D) J0) 3N ‘4epso Bunsaa
J0 suual Jad sy aiep uonisinhae Wody PaRs WM Auedlion 3yl 6) pausisuRl) uaaq aaey SBUIPING !ZIA SPUR| 3A0GE 3] JBA0 PRIONIISU0D sasadoud s|geaoww jo diysisumo |2pisusg
) ‘|euaRW J0U S| sasea| asauy) 03 $ased, - 11 Sy puj 4ad se Buijunodde asea) bulAjdde Jo pedwil 3y1 *HY30 Ag
paju=if asuad|| syl J2pun sSaUSNG UCHNGLISIP Ino BujAlied Jjo ssodind au Joy pasn spuej asaly 13A0 Sybu |euopelado pauieial sey Aueduiod aul ‘asuadl uennqEsip Jamed Jo Andxa
aUL Iy YeaA dad 1'3y 40 UolRiaPISUOD jeulwoy @ doy Augdwon Byl 0] 35ea| U0 UsAIB usaq SBY pue| ‘Japio BunsaA J0 suLa) aad sy “sweud s} Ul puej Aug uMo Jou saop Auedwos Siy

+0'v 3LON

SINIWILYLS TVIONVYNIH JHL 40 L¥Vd ONIWNOL SILON
wod'|poud) MMM :331Sqap
61095 'elpur’eysipo atosejeq [uebnuer
TS65E021dTZOTHO60TOPNINID
Q3LIWIT NOILNBINLSIA VHSIAO N¥3IHLHON dlL




‘uopa|diwos ey aunaw) pauueid ay) BUIPa3IX3 J0 UM JBAC 51502 UM Syaafosd ou ade aisiy ‘ssauisng 4o uorisinboe 1504

Z0'S 310N
'ssauisng ayl Jo uofjisinboe jo ep auyl Wolj d1MD 40 Buebe pauwiaap sey Auedwo] aiy

‘BYSIPO 40 LRd LIBYHOU U| UD|IEI0| SNOMEBA IR SHIOMIBU B[R PUB SIALLIDSURI] JO Uope|(eIsUl ‘SUoIRIS gns dn Buiias apnipul s394

£9'%91 - 149797 «5521B0ad Ul 5193[044d
sieslk -1 | JeaA T ueyj ss=
19308 30 popsad e 10) 4TMD Ul Junowy ssaibouag ul jaop [euden
o Ul 2 ZZ0Z Y218l ISTE I S€ DINPOYDS BUIBE dIMD T0°'S SLON
£9°¢91 S1°6ET T9°08BZT IT'ET 12301
£9°%8T ST'6ET 19°082 T2'E2 (lomIBU 3|GEI | S3UI| UDISSIWSURI] puB AJBUILDE
W jue|d 03 suieuad Apofew) ssaiboig ul yaap [Rided)
TZOT'EO'TE sjesodsia/ I20Z'P0°T0
1V sy pazjendes raRmPRY progpdas siemonsed
21040 U} 2

“Aue ) 'sso] Juausiedul) pajejnwnooe jo 13U 1500 38 pajels st ssaubodd i ssom (eides
) Adljod Bunjunoaay
ssoubosd ul yaom jejides 5 310N

"wIa1sAs ayj u| s|ieyap 13sse Alessadau ssiepdn pue uopeIYLIA |2aisAyd s2131dwod 1) uSym

Asuedaidsip eusiew ou g ||IM B0} IBYY AUAPHUOY §1 Juawsbeuely 31| 9SIN0D aNp Ul N0 pajued aq ||im siasse asay) j0 uonedyuaa |eisiyd “Auedwod ayl Ag paadope Asjjod uo paseg
‘Ausduwon au3 Jo surULOMad PRURLY 40 Uosod |[2Pueuy uo Prdun Aue asey Jou

lim bonedyuelo pasodold auyl aegl 1RY) S3A31[aq Justusbeuswl ay ), "DY30 a3 woy pamojje) Bununosse pue diyssaumo Buipsebal vonesylea Jayunl Buess si Auedwo ayl 'AmnBiguwe
pioae ol ‘Auediuod syl yo sso| Jo njosd ug Joediul 18U oU BUjABL . 'SSOT pui Juoid j0 JusLiaIes Ayl w pasiubiodal Buiaq 48 S81010 £2'7 Sy 4O UONBSILOLIR PUB Jdd 253k U0 uonepaidad
UORNGIIUOD Jawnsuod peay Al Jepun Ajliqe)| Buipuodsaiiod Byl pasiubodal pue siSeq PEIRWINSI U U0 S304) §9°T0T Sy 0) Bupunowe 344 pazijeyden sey Auedwop ay) ‘aesh syl
Supnp 'A|Buipioddy ‘siswinsuod ayj 03 Aipugdale Ajddns o) pasn Buiaq aue pue siawnsuod ayy Aq papuny AR3sLp SUSM URIYM (Idd) Juswdinba pue jueld ‘Ausdodd Ay dsao diysisume
pue ybu jeba| sey 1l Jey) saaa(|ag uswabeurlw 3yl ‘6107 ‘apod (Ajddns Jo suopIpuny) UCHNGUISIO UBISSIUWOY) Aloye|nbay ADIPD|3 BUSIPD 241 JO sumisiacad ay) Bupapisuo)

Spuny Jawnsuod jo 3no pajeasd Juswdinbg pue juelg Ajladoid 80t ILON

SINIW3ILVLS TVIONVNId 3HL 40 LuVd ONIWHOS SI1ON
wod'jpoud} MMm :BHSqe
61095, eipur’eysipo alosejeg fuebnuer
1565£021dTZ0ZH060TOVNINID
Q3LIWIT NOLLNSIYLSIA YHSIAO NYIHLYON di




TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
CIN:U401090R2021PLC035951
Januganj Balasore Odisha,India, 756019
Website: www.tpnodl.com

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their
eslimated. useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each

reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Useful lives
Type of asset
P (New assets)
Software 6 years

Derecognition

An item of properly, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the assel. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property. plant and equipment's is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of lhe assel and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

T in Crore
. Computer

Description o laaren Total
Cost
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 - .
Additions 19.42 19.42
Disposals - =
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 19.42 19.42
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 - -
Amortisation expense 1.16 1.16
Disposals - =
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 1.16 1.16
Net carrying amount
As at 31st March, 2022 18.26




TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
CIN:U401090R2021PLED35951
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7
Other financial assets - non current

(Unsacired and considerad good, bt amortised cast)

Geposils with banks*
Advances to Staff
Seaurity Deposit-to various autharities.

* Earmarked balances agamst government grantsfsubsidy towards capital asset

NOTE 8

Deferred tax assets/ liabilities (Net) (refer note no 32)

Taxable temporary differences

Deferied tax lability

NOTE 9
Non-current tax assets

Advance income tax/ tax deducted at source (net of propyvision]

NOTE 10
Other non-current assets
[Unsecurad and considered good)

(a} Receivable From State Goverments:

(b} Canlta! advances
{c) OtHers

NOTE 11
Inventories

Accounting policy

As at
3ist March 2022
Tin Crore

408.97
B.52
7.36

42292

Asat
3ist March 2022
T in Crors

1002

10.92

As-at
31ist March 2022
2 in Crore

29.78
23.78

|

As at
S.I.st March 2022
"% In Crore

2.03
63.37
12.95

78.25

H

11.1 Tnventories are stated at the lower of costand net realisable value. Costs of inventuriss are detsrmined of weighted average biasis, Net realissble value
represants the estimated selling price for inventonies less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale, Cost of inventory Includes
cost of purchase and other costs incurred in britging the Inventarjes to their present location and condition. Unserviceable/damaged stores and spares are
identified and written down basad on technlcai evaluaﬂnn.

(3) Staresangd spares (At lowsr of cost and net realisabie vaiue)

NOTE 12
Trade recelvables
(AL amortised cost}

(a) (1) Considerad dnod - unsacurad
(I} Slanificant Incréase in credit risk

Less: Allowanke for doubtful trade deby

As at
21st March 2022
€in Crore

14.15

14.15
As at

31st March 2022
Ein Crore

140,98
158.71
250 69

25.56

274.13




TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
CIN:U401090R2021PLCO35951
Januganj Balasore Odisha,Indis, 756019
Website: www.tpnodl.com

NDTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Wote: 1, The Company holds security dipasits fram consumers amounting to ¥ 607.82 Crore,
Note:2,Trade receivables includs amount of Rs 158,71 crores from consuriers who are inactive) peemanently disconnected, temporarily. disconnactad of non-
paying for past ana y=ar dr more.

The Company biss scqulred power distribution business of NESCO Utifity w.e.f. April 01, 2021. The management belleves that collection data related to pre-
acguisition periad is not relevant to assess expacted credit oss (ECL) allowance on recefvables in the post- acquisition period. In the absance of avullablllty uf
afaquate and relevant past data releted to payment behaviours, the Company has elected to recognise Expecied Credit Lass (ECL) allowance on trads
recevables as par tha OERE tariff ragulations, |.e., 1 1% af revenue from power sipply.

Post-aczuisition’ of power distribution businass from the NESCO, the Tompdny's endisavour has been to redice ATEC Insses, reducing provisional billing and
improving collectivn through bietter reath to consumers. [n the process, the:Company has faced several challenges including more than Covid-19 waves,
Cyclones and delays ir sppaintment warking of metering, billing and collection (MBC) agencies for reasons beyond contral of the Company. The Company has
successfully dealt with these challenges: It has reduced provisional billing and also collected significant amount towards pre-acquisition ricelvables on behall of

the NESCO utility: The management is canfident It will pe able to callect most of the outstanding racaivables as It Increases its raach Lo the consumers and also

considering that slectncity is.an essential commodity for all consumars, Accnrdlnglv the management ueuzm the auuue ECL allowance reflarts best estimates
and is appropriate as per Ind AS 108 - Finaneial Instruments.

Nite:3. Since the-acduisition of the power distribistion busingss from the NESCO, the Company has cardad out various adjustments, in the- pature of
agtualization of provistonal bill, bill correction, bill revision, first tme billing ste; resulting in net reduction of past billings. These adjustments include
adjustments refeted to the pre-acquisition as well as the pest-acquisition period. The management has usad jts best estimate and judgment te detarmine
adjustments attributable to the pre-acquisition perind. Bassd on such determinatinn, thers is no matarial raduction In ravenye that have been consider=d as
attributable to the pre-acquisition perod. Manauamgm believes that any change arising aut of actual sdjustrnent; in the pre-acquisition perivd will hot be
significant and will have no materiaf Impact an financial parformance and finsncial position.

M 4. Trade Recel Ageing schedule as at 31st March , 2022 ®lin crore
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment [
Less than 6 6 Months - . More than 3 Total
e 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 years years
(1) Undisputed Trade Recelvabl
a) Considered good 56,59 63,32 - - - 1io.98
B} Sigrilficant Increase in cradit risk 8041 78.30 B = = 158,71
(ii) Disputed Trade Recaivabl
‘a) Consicered good - - = >
b) Signifisant inckeass in cradit risk 15,00 5.00 - = = 2100

Post acquisition of business, the management has l‘nrrnulnted a machanism for rétalving and adressing consumar camphints including thosa related to billing
and outstandings. The managemant hias identified ‘disputed recaivanles basis infurmation available with the Company.

NOTE 13
cash and bank balances

Accounting policy

13.1 ‘Cash and cash equivalents comprise cdsh at batks ahd on hatd and short-term depasits with an anginal maturity of three months.or less, which are subject to
an Insignificarit risk of changes in value. Cash and cash equivatents inglude balances with banks Which are unrestrictad for withdrawal and usage.
Asat
31st March 2022
% in Crore
13.2 Cash and cash equivalents )
(a) Balances with banks - in current accounts 87.14
(b) Dieposits with banks with ariginal maturity of less than three months 34.32
(<) Cash on hand 33.25
154,71
As at
3ist March 2022
€ in Crore
132.3 Bank balances other than 13.2 abovae* _
() Peposits with banks with ariginal 71192
maturity more than 3 months upto 12
manths
71192
~Earmarked halances against consumer security deposits and shart term bBorrowings
134 Recenciliation of Liabilities from Financing Activities
As at Cash Flows Non-cash As at
particulars Aprit 1,2021% | Procesds | Pay Adjustments | March 31, 2022
Security deposits from sleckricity ¢ e 596,43 11.39 = - 507.82
Cantributfon for capltal works a08.25 111.22 - (p5.52) 953.96
Consumers! d ins for works 141.35 .18 - - 141.52
Subsidies towards:cost of capital ssset 17441 181.16 - [12:71) 342.80
Share Capital = 272.92 = 22.02 294,84
Cash Cradit (net payment during the year) 370.05 - (143.32) - 226,72
Total 2,190.50 576.87 | (143.33) (56.21) 2,567.83

* Acqifired asa part of business carmbination from NESCO [Refer Note 35]




TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 14
Other financial assets - current
[Unsecuréd and considerad good, unless otherwisa stated, at amartised cost)

(2} Advancs to staff
{b) Other Racalvable

NOTE 15
Other current assets
(Unsecured and considerad good, unless otharwise stated, at amaortised cost)

{#) ‘Advances bo others

As at
31st March 2022
€ in Crore
7.93
2.83

10.86

) Asat. }
31st March 2022

Tin Crore
‘20,03

20.03
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Asat
31st March 2022
No, in crore 2in crore
NOTE 16
Share capital
Authorised
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each 10600 1,000.00
100,00 1,000.00_
1ssued, subscribed and paid up
Equity shares of 2 10/- sach (fully paidup) 2949 19494
Total issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 29.40 204,94
a. Reconciliation of shares cutstanding as at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:
) As at
31st March 2022
No. in crore ¥ crore
Equity shares
Issued as part of business combination 25.a0 250.00
Rights issue subsequantly 4.49 44,94
Outstanding at the end of the period 28.49 204,94

b. Rights, preference and restrictions attached to shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the repayment of
capital:
Equity Shares
The company has orly one class ol sguity shares havidg & par valuz of Re.10 pershare, Each hdlder of equity shares (s entitled o one vote per
share held. The share holders are entitled to dividend declared on Proportionate basis. On liguidation of the company, the squity sharsholders
are eligiblz to receive ramaining assets of the Coemparny after distribution of all preferantial amounts in proportion to their shareholding.

c, Details of share holders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Eauitv shares of Rs. 10 each fullv paid As at

3 : 2
Name of the Shareholder No of Shares % of Holding
A, The Tata Power Company Ltd (Holding company) 15,04,21,235 51.008%
B. GRIDCO Ltd (Company having significant influence) 14,45,22 364 49.00%
Total ' 29,4943 600 100.00%

d, Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up without payment being received in cash.
The Company allotted 22,022,364 equity shdres as Tully paid for considerations received in fofm of Distribdtion' Assels, pursuant to the
shatslolders agreement and the Government of Odisha notifications. Value of distribution assats have bean determined by an independent
registerad valuer.

&, Details of shares held by promoters at tha end of the year :
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid

Discl e of sh halding of pr ters as at March 31, 2022 is as follows:
No. of Sharas ] No. of Shares as
Pramater as at 20th C";“:‘;;'i‘:;“-g ‘at 315t March = m‘:’”s:'am
March, 2021 2022
A. The Tats Powsr Compary Lid - 15,04,21,236 15,04,21,236 51%
8. GRIDCO Ltd < 14,45,22,364 14,457,364 A80
Total = 29,49.43,600 29,49,43,600 LO0%
As at
NOTE 17 31st March 2022
Other equity T in crore
17.1 Retained earnings
fa) Balance at beginning of parind -
(b) Profic for the period 73.92
{c) Other Comprehens|ve Income for the period (Nat) =
Clesing balance 73.92

‘Nature and purpose of reserves:

Retained sarnings
Retainad earnings are the profits of the Company =armed 4| dat= net of appropriations,




TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
CIN:U401050R2021PLCO35351
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 18
Provisions
1B

18.2

"Accounting Policy

Provisipns. are recogrised whern the Company has-a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a resull ef 2 past svent, it s probable that the
Campany will he required tp settle the obligation and a relizble estimate can be made of the amount of the abligation, The amount recognised as a
provision Is the best estimate of the consideration required to sattls the present abligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and unr.srtal’.ntm& surraunding the obligation, When a pravision is measurad using the cash ﬂl:ms gstimated to Sstile the present nblrga'r.lun, its
carrying amount is tha present valus of those cash I'Tm\ls {whan the affact of the tima value of | mune\r Is matarial),

Prasant obligations arfsing under gnerous contracts are recoanised and measurst 35 provisions with' chisrgs to stateinznt of priofit a6d loss. ‘An anerous
cohtract is considersd totexist whare-the Company has s coitract undar which the undvoidable costs of mesting the: obligatinns under the contrach
axcecd the econbmic benefitsiexpected to be received fram the contract.

Defined contribution plans:

Payments to defined contnibution retrement beneft plans are regognised 85 an expanse when ampiovees have rendered service antieling them to the
jeantributions. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received befgre the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid; the
defiait payable to the scheme is recognized as a llabllity after daducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the
canttibution dus for senrfl:es recelved before the balance shest date, than excess is rtzconnl:ed a5 an asset to tha extent that the. pre-payment will lead
to, for example, 3 reduction in future payment or 3 cash refund,

Defined Benefits plans

The cast of providing bensfits undar the defined bansfit olan is determinad using the projected unit credit method. Remeasiremants, comprising of
actiarial gains and Insses, the effect of the asset cailing, excluding amounts Inclidad in aet Intsrest on the net definzd bansfit ability and the retum
an plan assets [sxcluding amouiits included In net interest on Lhe net defined bensfit liability), are‘recognissd immediately in the balante sheet with a
coreaspanding debit or cradit to ratained sarnings through OCL it thie period i which they ‘occur. Remeasursments are not reclassified to profit or loss
Ir:subsequent perinds,

Past seryica costs are recugnisen I the statemient of profit and luss on the =arifer of:
- The date of the plan amendment or curtallment, and
- The dat_e_ that the Company reconnises ralated restructuring costs

Nat Interest s calcdloted by applying the discount rate to the net defined bedafit Fability or asset. Thie Comipany recognises the following chiangesin thie
net defined: benefit abligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss: .

- Service costs comprising currént service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses pn curtaliments and mon-routine settlements;  and

- Net int2rast expensz or income.

Other current and other non-current employee benefits

" [fability s recognised for current banefits-acerling to émployees in respect of wages and salaries, annual jdve and sick leave in the period the felated

sarvice is renderad st the undisebunted amolnt of the benefits expsicted to be paid I sxcharge for that service. Liabilities recagnised In fespact of
current employss benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be pad in exchange for the related service,

The cast of providing other long-term employas benefits, including eamed leave, sick leave and other benefits, |s determined uaing the projected unit

cradit mathod, The related expenses including refneasurement gaing ang losses are recagnised n the Statement of Prufit and Loss,

The Company dpérates & schame for Comperisatad absences wherejn the employee is entitied to avall leave banafits as per the policy of the Company.
The leave bensfits-are linked to the salary of the employes and the amployes |s entitied to eithar-avail paid leave or ancash unavailed leave sitHer
during emplayment or on ratirement, The liatility for compensated absances is provided on the basls of an actuariel valuation done by an ind=pandent
actuary at the reparting period end. The Company treats accumulated |eave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months; as long-term
amployee benefit for measurement purposes. Actuarial gains and losses. ane recognised | dhately in the Stat of Profit and Loss,

Defined contribution plans
Er: NESCO E oy

Providant Fund Plan
The Company makes contritiitions towards pravident rupd Trust wnl;n ls 3 defined contribution plan for sligible arstuhile NESCO utility smployess, The
Companies contribution to the other remaining sligitle amployees p fund is deposited under the Employees Provident Fund and Miscallansous

Provisions Act, 1852, The provid fund is op d by reg I provids fund ¢ e, Under the scheme, the Company is requoirsd to
contribute 2 specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits.

‘Other than Erstwhile NESCO utility Emplovees

Provident Fund Plan

The Company makes contrbutions towards provident fund which is a defined contnibution plan for qualifving ampioyees. The Companies contribution to
the:employees provident fund is deposited bty the Company under the Employees Provid Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act; 1952 which s
racoanized by the fncome tax authorities. The provident fund is operated by regional provident fund commissioner, Under the scheme, the Company =
raqlirad to contribute a speaified percantade of payroll cost t the retirament Benefit schama to fund the bensfits,
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18.3.

12}

8-

Defined Benefits plans

Erstwhila NESCO utility Emplovees
i) Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratulty plan, The gratuity plan is prmarily governed by the Ddisha Clvil Services (Pension) Rules 1992, Employess
‘who are in continuols sarvice far a perind of flve years are eligible for gestiity. The level.of benefits provided depend

on the member's length of
service and salary at the ratifamert datz. Thie gratiity plan is funded plan. The fund nas the form of a-trust and 1s dovarned by Trustees appoint=d by
the Company. The Trustees are responsible for the:agministration of the plan assets and for the defintion of the investment strategy in accordance with
the regulations. The:funds ara deplovad in recognised insurer managed funds in India;

i) Pansion

The Campany has 5 defined benefir pension plan, The pension alan |5 primarily govemed by the Odisha Civil Services (Pensinn) Aules 1992, Emplayses
who had jolned NESCO on or bafurs 31t Dacember 2004 are c1lglb;e far pension, The |ével of bensfits provided depends an the miEmber’s lzngth of
service and salary at the retirament date. THe pension plan is fundad pian, The fund has the form of a trust and is governed by Trustees appointad by

‘the'Company. The Trustees are responsible for the adriinistration of the plan agsels and for the definitioh of the inestiment strategy In azturdince with

the regulations. The funds ara deployad in recognised insurer ged funds:in India.

‘A= per tarms of the vesting order and the Carva Out order ststes that for entire llabilities toward pension, gratuity and leave ashment of amaloy
retried befors the acguisition date and acquisition date labilities of continuing employees on the acquisition date; the Company’s respansibility is lmited
only to remitting fixed amount raguested by the respective Trusts and the same shall be allowed to be recovered from consumers on behalf of the
respective Trusts for disbursal to the beneficlaries covered ynder the Trusts. Tha Company has recognised amount payable to the Trusts for the qument
year for anward payment of the said liabilities are charged as an eypense as they fall due.

Other than Erstwhile NESCO Emplovees (Unfunded)

N Gratuity.

Thie Company operates a gratuity plan covering uuatiryir!g ermployees. The benefit pavable s calculated as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 The
benefit vests upon complation of five years of cnr:tlnuuus sarvice and onge vastad (b |5 paysble to employees on retiremeant ar on termination of
emplwmant. The gratulty henqﬂt‘s ble to the employees are based on the employes’s seryice and last drawn salary at the time of leaving. The
emiployess dn not cantribut l+ns plam and the full cost of providing these benefits are mat by the Company. In case of death while in service,
the aratuity: is pavable irespective of vnatlnq.

] Pension

The company has a defined benafit plan granting 2 pre-détafmined sum as pansion aftar completing vesting periad.

iii] Post Employmant Medical Benefit

The company provides certain past employment health care benefits ta superannuated employees at some of it= locations. In terms of the phan, the
retirad employass can avall fres medical chack-up and medicinas at companies’ faci(jties.

iv) Ex-Gratia Death Banefits

Thes company has a defined Benzfit plan granting ex-gratis In case 6f death during senvice, The benefit consists of a pre-detefmined lumpsum amfiodnt

“along with 2 sum determinid basad oh lgst drawn basic salary pel monknand the :I'ehgth of servica.

¥) Retirement Gift

‘The company hasa definell banefit plan granting a°’pre-detfmided sum as rétirement gift on sliperanniatian of an emplayee,

Asat
Provision for Employee Benefits' 31st March 2022
T in Crore
‘Mon-Current
Gratuity 33.96
Pension Fund 5592
Leaye Encashment 1856
Pbst Retirement Medical Bensfit (PRMB). 0,24
@ther Defined Benefit Plan - 2353
[Current
Gratuity . .20
Leave Encashment 0:98
‘Other Defined Benafit Plan 3.14
4.31
QOther.provisions
N

Pravisions for claims & compensation 10,26

10.26

14,58
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18.4

18:5

1255

MESCO was operating the sisctricity distribution busiress (Business} in Northern Odisha until March 31, 2021, The Company has acquired the
electricity distribution business of NESCO with effect fram Aprill 1, 2021, As a-part of Business transfer, a|| the employess of the undartaking
were transferred to the Company effective April 1, 2021 on a continuity of sarvice condition, Certain employess of NESCO transferred to the
Company arz entitied to pension and gratuity plsn which are maniged by separste trusts who are responsible for the disbursament of pension
and ‘grituity to the henernanﬂ As on the date of acqmsl.:lnn the plan liabilitles 2xcead nlan assets, The \restlng Order has clariﬂeu that
apaning liabilities of the trists are not transferred to [he Company and they will continuie 1o be trusts’ cbligation The vesting erdir prescribes
the mechanism for flnding of suth plan liabilities bdsed on raqUest frdm the raspactive smplayse bapefit trusts whareby the Chmpany is
requirad-to fund the shortfall and is entitléd to' simitaneosusiy racolet the ampunts from consuimers, The Company has assessed that post
transfer of business, these plans as defined banafit plans and has accordingly recognized anly incremental isbllity it in tha financial statements.

| Particulars | Pension| Gratuity Leave|  Rehabllitation| Total (¥ crore)
| Ampunt paid dunng the year (FY 2021-22) | 105.53 | 17.94 | 7.23 | - 130,70

Risk assaciated with the plin grovisions are actuarial risk. These risk are interest rate risk, deffiographic risk and salary escalation risike

Ihtarest risk
A decrense in the bond intersst rate will incresse the plan liability: iowever, this will be partially offset by an increase Inthe fetum on the glan’s

debt irestments.

ngavi k.
The prasent valua of the definsd befafit plan liability is calculdted by reference to the best estimate of the mdrtality of plan participants Bath
during and after their emplayment. An ingrease inithe life expectancy of the plan participants will Increase the plan's liability. '

The present value of the defined benefit plan labllity 15 calculated by refarance to the future salarles of plan participants. As such, an Increase in

the salary af the plan parmicipants will increase the plan’s lisbility,
The following tables set out the funded status of gratuity plan and amount mro-gmzud In the Compainy's finarclBl statemerits as at 31st March

2022.The valuation has been crrled out using the * Project Unil Cradit Method " a5 per Ind AS 19 " Employes Bénsfits” to detsrmine the
prasent value of defired benafit obligations and relatisd clirant service cost:

a. Prssent Value of obliaations

As At March 31, 2022

e ‘Gratuity (Un Other Defined Gratuity Pension ed
Funded)  |Benchit (Unfunded)| (Fundesy | Fension (Funded)

Prassnt Value of obligations as at April 1, 2021 3¢
"per Actisarial Valuation

b Interest Cost 543 4.29 13,16
¢, Currant Service Cost * 1.52 4,99 23.88
4. Fast Service Cost 310 2771 = =
2, Acgusition ( Credit}/Cost 3.68: .90 = E
f. ‘Actuarial lass / (gain)-Demographic - - (0.24) 18,88
g, Actudrial loss / (gain}-Financial - (1.61) {1.20) -
h. Actusrial lass / (gain)-Experience . 12.53 21.57 .
. Benefits Paid - - - -
4 Immegiata recogrition of {gans)/Losses-other long . 0.90 r =
" term employes benefit plans '
k. Prasant value of obligation at the 2nd of the parlod 5.78 47,47 29841 55392

b. Fair value of plan assets

As At March 31, 2022

Gratuity (Un Other Defined Gratuity Pension [Funded)
- Eunded) Banefit [Funded)
&, Fair value of plan asset a5 at April 1, 2021 = = J
b. Acquisition {Credit)/Cost = = - =
¢. Estimated return on pian asset - - - ]
d. Employer eomtribution - = = =
&. Benefits Paid = = = =
f. Excess gf actual gver estimated return = = 2,04 -]
a. Othars = - - -

Particulars

. Fairvalue of plan asset at the end of the penod - - 2.04 -




TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
CIN:U401090R2021PLCO35951
Januganj Balasore Odisha,India, 756019
Website: www . tpnodl.com.

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

c. A ttober ized in the balance sheet
As At March 31, 2022
Particulars.
culars Gratuity (Un Other Defined Gratuity it (Punded)
Funded) Benefit (Unfunded) (Funded)
i. Present Value of obligations as at the end of the
period a3 per Actuanial Valustion 6.78 47.47 29,41 55.92
2. Fair value of Assets at the and of the period - - 2.04 »
3. Net lisbillity 5.78 47.47 2737 55.92
4. Liability not transferred to the Company as per
vasting order
5. Net Current Liability recognized in balance sheat b.20 413 - -
5. et Liability recogmized in balance sheet .74 4744 27,37 55.32
6. Net:Non Current Liability recognized in balance sheet 5.59 4311 27.37 5532
d. E is R ised in the - of Profit & Loss
As At March 31, 2022
Particulars =
: Gratuity (Un Gther Defined Gratuity, Pehsion (Funded)
Funded) Benefit (Unfunded) (Funded)
1. Curfant Sarvice Cost - 152 2.95 23.88
2, Past Ssrvice Cost 3.0 27.71
3. Interest Cost - 5.43 4.29 1316
4. Expected return on 2lan Assefs i z = - -
5. Immediate Recognitlon of (Gains)/ Lossss - Other - 1247 ~ -
Long Term Beneflts ¥
6. Mer Actyarial (Gain)/Loss recogmized in the pariod - - - .
7. Expanses rcagnizad In statement of Profit & Loss 3.10 46.82 7.24 37.04
e, Amount ised in other compret ive i (r ts}
As At March 31, 2022
Particulars Gratuil u Other Defined Gratui
“E"f n - = TR neJ Y _ra F t! Pansion (Funded)
F ] ( ) (F b]
Actuanial (gains)/lusses arising from: -
- ehanges in damographic assumptions - - (0.24) -
- changas In financial assumiptions - [1.59) (1.20) -
- experience adjustments _ ) - 12.33 21.57 18.88
Return on plan assats (greater)/less than discount = o =
rats
Total - 10.75 20.13 18.88
f. | Principal assumptions
Asat
Mar 31, 2022
Particulars :
Q G'."“".“'.} Gratuity (funded)
1. Disoount rate 7.10% 7.10%
2, Saliry escatation 7-00% 7.00%
Indfian Assured | Indian Assurad Lives
3. Mortality rate Lives Mortslity Muortality (2006-08)
(2006-08) UlL Uit
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g. Sensitivity analysis
Significant aztuarial assumotions far the: determination ‘of the defingd obligation are’ disdount rEte -ang axpected salary increasel The
sensitivity -analyses below have been deterouned based on reasonably possiblz changes of the respective assumptions occurring st the =nd
of the reporting oanod, while holding all ather assumptions constant:

As at Mar 31, 2022

Increase/ {decreasa) in defined benefit liability Gratuity Other Defined Gratuity 7

(Unfunded) |Benefit (Unfunded)| (Fundedy | Pension (Funded)
Effect on defined benefit obligation due to 0.5% _
Inérease in saldry Bscafation mte L) 738 3557 14,35
Effect dn defined benefit obligation due td 0,5% . o
dacr=ase In'salary escalation rate (o:27) (5:88} 341 (10.:69)
Effect on defined bensfit obligation die to 0.5%
T - (0.27) (5.14) [43.95) (61.48)
Eff=ct on deafined bessfit obligation doe to 0.5%
|decrease in discount rate 0.3 743 48,05 6711

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be reprasentative of the 3ctlial change in the defined benefit uhlrgatmn 35 It is unlikely
that the charme in aﬁumutl.nns would acour in fsalatlon of.on= angtier 35 some af the ptions may ba earral .

‘Furthermare, |0 preseénting the above sensitvity analysis, the presant value of the defined benefit atligation has been calculated using
the pfojected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which s the same as that applied In cplculating the defined benafit
sbligation liability récagrissd inthe Balance shest. ' o o

The welghted average duration of the unfunded dratuity plan 5 11 y=ars.

h. Effect of Plan on Company's future cash flows

As at Mar 31, 2022
Expected Future cashflows Gratuity _ Other Defined Gratulty Pension
(Unfunded) | Benefit (Unfunded) (Funded)= (Funded)*
March 31, 2023 0.20 8.50 55,93 108,87
March 31, 2024 2:45 10.07 85.58 111.26
March 31, 2025 0,25 7.87 54.50 106.92
March 31, 2025, 0,58 7.02 40,70 104.30
March 31, 2027 1,07 7.36 40,37 104.30
March 31,2028 to March 31, 2032 6.15 37.38 225.16 500.08

*including payment for llaﬁl_[{zi.‘ex not trafsferrad to the Company (rafer nola 18.04)
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NOTE 19

Contribution towards Capital Assats-Non Current (At Cost less amortisation)
Consymer Contribution towards cost of capital assets
Deferrad Government Grant towards cost of capital assets

v i r eon
Acquired as part of business combination
Add: Additions during the period
L=gs! Transfer to statement of profit & loss:
Closing Balance

ds cost of capital assat

COpening
Add: Additions during the period
Less: Transfer to statement of profit & loss

NOTE 20

Other non current liabilities
Subsidies towards capital assat
Consiimers' deposits for works
Deposit from suppller/vendor

20.1 Movement in Deferred government arant
Qpentng
Add: Additions during the period
Less: Trarsfer to statement of profit & loss
Closing Balance

NOTE 21

Short-term borrowings

(At amortized cost)

(2) Loans Payable on Demand

Secured - at amortised cost
From Banks-Cash credit

Total short-term borrowings
Note:l. Secured credit facilities

As at
31st March 2022
¥ in Crore

944 40
9.56
853.96

978.26

101.66

(65.52)
944.40

9.76
0.20
8.56

As at
31st March 2022
2 in Crore
342.86
141.52
12.90
497.28

17441

181.16
{12.71)

342.86

As at
31ist March 2022
2 in Crare
226.72

226.72

The Company has availed cash credit limit of Rs.250 crores from State Bank of India, CAG Branch, Mumbai and Rs: 150 crores from Axis bank,

Bhubaneswar branch secured against hypothecation of stock and debtors. The interest rates vary between 7.25% to 7.50%.

Note:2, Current borrowlings secured against current assets

Wherevar required, the Company has filed necassary returns/statemeants with banks and the said returns/statements ars in agreement with the

‘hooks of accounts of the Company. No material discrepancles exists.

NOTE 22
Trade payables (at amortised cost)

Dues to Micro Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME)
Dues Other-tharn MSME Craditors

As at
31st March 2022
% in Crore.
18.52
517.78
536.71
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22.1 Post acquisition, the Company has inltiated the process af identifying the micro and small entarprises. Micro and small enterprises under the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Agt, 2006 have been determined based on the information avallable with the Company and
the required disclosures are given below:

As at
Particulars 31st March 2022
¥ in Crore

(&) Principal amaunt remaining unpaid as at 31st March 2022 18.92
(b) Intersst due thereon as at 31st March 2022 -
{c] The amount of interest paid in terms of section 16 of the Micro; Small and Medium Enterprises -

Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the smounts of the payiment made to the

supplier beyond the appainted day during eachi accounting year

(d) The amount of interest due and navah}a for the period of delay In making paymeant (which has -
bean pald but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Develapment Act, 2006

{g) The amaunt of interast accrued and remaining unpaid as at 31st March 2022 .

(fy, The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date .
when the interest dues.as above are actually paid to the small enterprise
- 8w
Note:1. Trade Payables Ageing schedule as at 31st March,2022
Qutstanding for following
) periods from due date of Total
Particulars payment # Eoioka
Less than 6 6 Months - 1
Months Year
(i) Undisputed Trade Payables
&) M5ME 18,92 - 1892
b) Others 40B.42 109:36 51778
(i) Disputed Trade Payables
a) MSME - = -
b) Others - - -
# Whera due date of paymient is not available date of transaction has bean consideared
The management has identified disputed payablas basis information available with the comparny.
NOTE 23 As at
Other financial Ifabilities - currant 31st March 2022
(At amortised cost) % in Crore
{2} Payable to employses 2.7
(B) Security deposit from consumer 607.82
(c) Dutstanding for'supply for capitdl matarial 127.61
{d} Intarest payable on consumer security deposits 24.71
(e} Payable to residuary company (Refer note no 41) 57.66/
() Share application money to be refunded 0.03
(d) Advance from consumiers 4043
890.98

Note: The security depgsits from electricity consumers carry Interest at 4.25% p.a. and is adjusted agalnst power bill of the respective customers as
per tariff regulations. The amount s refundable on surrender of elsctricity connection by the consumer.

NOTE 24
Other current liabilities

(3

Statutory dues

As at
31st March 2022
¥ in Crore

62.95
62.95
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NOTE 25

Regulatory Deferral Account
Accounting Policy

The Company determines revenue gaps (i.e. surplus/shortfall in actual returns over returns entitled) in respect of its regulated
operations in accordance with the provisions of Ind AS 114 “Regulatory Deferral Accounts” read with the Guidance Note on Rate
Regulated Activities issusd by the ICAI and based on the principles laid down under the relevant Tariff Regulations/Tarifl Orders
notified by the Electricity Regulator and the actual or expected actions of the regulator under the applicable reguiatory framewnork.
Appropriate adjustments in respect of such revenue gaps are made in the revenue of the respective year for the amounts which ara
reasonably determinable and no significant uncertainty exists in such determination: These adjustments/accrudls representing
revenue gaps are cartied forward as Regulatory deferral accounts debit/credit balances (Regulatory Assets/Regulatory Liabilities) as
the case may be in the financial statements, which would be recpvered/refunded through future billing based on future tariff
determination by the regulator in accordance with the electricity regulations.

In the regulated operations of the Company where tariff recovered from consumers is determined on cost plus return on ‘equity, the
Income tax cost is pass through cost and accordingly the Company recognises Deferred tax recoverable/payable as Regulatory Asset/
Liabllity against any Deferred tax expense/ ingome.

The Company presents separate line items in the balance sheet for:

i. the total of all regulatory deferral account debit balances and related deferred tax balances: and
it. the total of all reaulatorv deferral account eradit balances and related deferred tax balances.

A separate line item s presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the net movement in regulatory deferral account.

As at
31st March 2022
Z in crore
Regulatory Deferral Account - Assets - Curréent
Reaulatory Assats 22.58
Net Regulatory Assets/(Liabilities) 22.58

Rate Regulated Activities

(i) As per the Ind AS-114 'Regulatory Deferral Accounts', the business of elactricity distribution is a Rate Regulated activity
wherein OERC, the regulator determines Tariff to be charged from consumers based on prevailing regulations in place.

The Odisha Electricity Regulatary Commmission (Terms and Conditions for Determination of Wheeling Tariff and Retall Supply
Tariff) Regulations, 2014, is applicable. These regulations, together with the vesting order, require OERC to determine tariff in a
manner wherein the Company can recover its fixed and variable costs including assured rate of return on approved equity
base, from Its consumers. The Company determines the Revenue, Regulatory Assets and Liabilities as per the terms and
conditions specified in these Regulations and Vesting Order.

As per the vesting order, the AT&C loss trajectory which can be passed on to customers s fixed for the first tan years. Any
gain/ loss arising due to jower/ higher AT&C losses vis-a-vis fixed trajectory belongs to the Company and is not passed on to
the custamer. The Company determines the amount of such gain/ loss based &n basis power purchase cost only and treats all
other expensas including operation and maintenance expenses, employee cost, finance cost and tax expense as pass through
to the consumers as per prevailing regulations and tariff ordars while determining 'Regulatory Deferral Account Balance.

Reconciliation of Regulatory Assets/Liabilitles of distribution business as per Rate Regulated Activities is as follows:

Period Ended
31st Mar 2022
% in crore
(1) Power Purchase Cost 1,872.64
(ii} Other expenses as per the terms of Tariff Regulations including ROE 877.24
(lii) Collected during the period as per approved Tariff (2,577.07)
Net movement in regulatory deferral balances (i+ii+iil) (A) (27.19)
Regulatory Income/(Expenses) recagnised in OCL (B) 49.77
Opening regulatory assets{nat of liabilites) (C) =
22.58

Closing regulatory assat{net of liabllities) (A+B+C)
——
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NOTE 26

Revenue recognition

Accounting policy

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an
ampunt that reflects the consideratjon to which the Company expects to be entjtled in exchange for those goods or services.
There is no significant judgerment invelved while evaluating the timing as to when customers obtain control of promised goods
and services,

Revenue is measured based on the conslderation specified in a contract with a tustomer and excludes amounts collected on
behalf of third parties.

26.1

26.2

26.3

26.4

26,4.1
(2)

26.4.2
(a).
(b)
(c)
()
(e)
()
(@)
(h)
{1

Sale of power

Revenue from the supply of power is recognised net of any trade discounts, cash rebates, etc. when the power is
supplied and Units of electricity are delivered as it best depicts the value to the customer and satisfaction of
performance obligation, Revenue from such contracts is recognized over time for each unit of electricity delivered at
the pre-determined rate.

Revenue from power supply is accounted for on the basis of billings to consumers and includes unbilled revepues
accrued up to the end of the reporting period. Revenue from power supply is recognised net of the applicable taxes
which the Cempany cellects from the customer on behalf of the government/state authorities.

The Company, as per the pravalent Regulations (referred as "Tariff Regulations™) for distribution business, s required
to recover its Annual Revenue Requirement [ARR) comprising of expendlture on account of power purchase costs,
operations and maintenance expenses, financing cost, as per the said Tariff Regulations and an assured return on
equity . As per the said Tariff Regulations, the Company determines the ARR and any excess/shortiall in recovery of
ARR during the year is-accounted for in "Regulatory Deferral Account Balance".

Reverue In respect of invoice raised for dishonest abstraction of power is recognized when the certainty of its
collection is probable i.e. as and whan recovered.

Contribution for capital works

Consumer’s contribution towards cost of capital assets is treated as capital receipt and credited In liabilities until
transferred to a separate account on commissioning of the assets and installation of connection respectively. ‘An
amount equivalent to the depreciation charge for the year on such assets is appropriated from this account as income
to the Statement of Profit and Loss..

Incentive on past arrears collection

As per terms of OERC vesting order, the Company is eligible for incentive on past area collections pertaining to period
prior to March 31, 2021, Revenue In respect of incentive is recognized as percentage of actual realization of pass
arrears.

Period Ended
31st March 2022

¥ in Crore

Revenue from operations
Revenue from sale of power
Sale of power 2,577.07
Less: rebate to consumers 21.35
Revenue from contract with customers 2,555.72
Other operating revenue
Amortisation of consumer contribution 65.52
Amortisation of goverment grants in capital nature 0.20
Amortisation of goverment grants in revenue nature 12,71
Recovery of meter Rent 25.35
Qver drawal Payment recovered 6.52
Incentives on Arrears Collection 16.15
Open Access Cross Subsidy Income 57.98
Supervision Charges 5,72
Miscellaneous eperating Income 377

193.83
Revenue from operations 2,749.65
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26.5 Contract Balances
The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with
customers
Particulars Period ended
31st March 2022
Z in Crore
Contract liabilities
Advance from consumers 40.43
Total contract liabilities 40.43
Receivables
Trade receivables 299.69
Unbilled revenue depending only on passage of time: 227.52
Less : Allowances for doubtful debts (25.56)
Net receivables 501.65
Contract assets )
Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. Contract
assets are transferred to recelvables when the rights become unconditional.
Contract Liabilities )
A contract llabllity Is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
cansideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays copsideration before the
Company transfers goods or services to the custamer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs
under the contract including advance recaived from customer,
26.6 Transaction Price - Remaining Performance Obligation
The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be
recognized as at the end of the reporting period and ap explanation as to when the Company expects to recognize
these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical sxpedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosad
the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for contracts as the revenue recognized corresponds directly
with the value to the customer of the entity's performance completed to date. Advance from consumers will be
recognized as revenue within 12 manths from reporting date.
NOTE 27 Other income
Accounting Policy
- Interest income
Interast income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Campany and the amount of jncome can be measurad reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable; which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
arnount on initial recognition.
- Delayed Payment Charges (DPC)
DPC is charged at the rate prescribed by the Tariff Regulations on the outstanding balance. Revenue in respect of DPE
and interast on DPC leviable as per the Tariff Regulations are recognized on actual realisation or accrued based on an
assessmeant of certainty of realization supported by an acknowledgement from customers.
Period Ended
31st March 2022
Other income Zin Crore
(a) Interest income 34.45
(b)  Delayed paymient surcharge 5.67
(e} Other income 5.47

Disagaregation of revenue
The Company deals in a single type of product |.e. power which is sold directly to consumers, consideration in respect
of which is based on energy supplied . Thus further disclosure in respect of disaggregation of revenue is not required.

45.60
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NOTE 28
Cost of power purchased and transmission charges

(2) Power purchase cost
Transmission charges
SLDC charges
Less: Rebate on power purchased and transmission charges

NOTE 29
Employee benefits expense

(a)  Salaries, wages and honus

(b) Contribution te provident and other funds
(e) Staff welfare expenses

(d) Terminal benefit expenses

Period Ended
31st March 2022

¥ in Crore
1,705.43
149.04
1.02

(18.74)

1,836.76

Period Ended
31ist March 2022

Z in Crore

236.49
184.19
1.36
14.75

436.79
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NOTE 30
Finance costs

(&) Interest on consumer security deposits
(b) Interest on Cash Credit carried at amortised cost - banks

NOTE 31
Other expenses

(a) Repalrs and maintenance:
(i Building
(i) Plant and equipment
(iil) Vehicles & Office equipment
(b)  Rent
(c)  Consultancy Fees
(d) Legal Charges
(e) Advertisement & Marketing Expenses
() Electricity Consumption Expenses
(g) Telephone Expenses
(h) Insurance Premium
(i) Travelling Expenses
(j)  Office Expenses
(K). Allowance for doubtful debts
0] Outsourced Employees Expenses
{m) Watch and Ward Expenses
(n) Franchisee Expenses for Revenue Collection
(o) Billing and Collection Expenses
(p) Provisions for claims & compensation
(a) Directors sitting fees
(r) Miscellaneous expenses

Total other expenses

311 Auditors remuneration
Constitancy fees include auditor's remuneration as follows:
Particulars
Audit fee (including Goods and Services Tax)

31.2 Corporate social responsibility

Period Ended
31st March 2022

Z in Crore

26.25
18.98

45.23

Period Ended
31st March 2022

Z in Crore

0.24
129.87
0.25
2.15
6.15
1.78
2.69
2,65
0.87
4.17
11.19
0.88
25.56
14.35
5.20
18.32
18.32
10.88
0.86
4.77

261.16

Period Ended
31ist March 2022

T in Crore
0.66

0.66

Section 135 (5) of the Act, inter alia, provides that the Company shall spend, in every financial year, at
least two percent of the average net profits of the Company made during the three immediately
preceding financial years or where the Company has not completed the period of three financial years
since its incorporation, during such immediately praceding financial years, in pursuance of its Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy. As the company has completed its first financial year on 31st March 2022,
provisions under Section 135 (5) shall be applicable to the Company effective from FY 2022-23.

31.3 Short term leases

The Company has applied short term lease exemption for above rental of land, buildings, plant and

eguipment, etc in accordarice with Ind AS 116 - 'Leases’
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NOTE 32 Tax expenses

32.1

32:2

32.3

32.4

Accounting policy _ _
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The current tax payable is based on taxable profit for the reporting period. Current income tax assets and
liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Current income tax relating to items recognized out side statement of profit and loss is recognized outside
statement of profit and loss (either in ather comprehensive income or in equity). Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differerices between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities jn the financials statements and the corresponding tax base used in the cofmputation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable ternporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available agalnst which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised,
Such deferred tax assets and ligbilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewsd at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting periad.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either
in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Defarred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income tax else vied by the same
taxation authority and the relevant entity intends to sattle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax lgsses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Tax expense/(income) Period Ended
31st March 2022

Current tax % in Crore

In respect of the current period 13.94

Deferred tax

In'respect of the currerit period 1p.92

Total income tax expense/(income) recognised in the current period 24.86

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate :

Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense 98.78
Tax Expenses /(Income) at the Indian tax rate of 25.17% 24.86
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32.5

NOTE 33

Income tax expense o
The Company has made provision for income tax at the rate of 25.17% ( Tax rate 22% Plus Surcharge

10% Plus cess 4% on tax & surcharge ) in accardance with normal provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961 for
the period ended 31 March, 2022.

Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liability) Period Ended
Deferred tax asset/(liability) on account of : 31st March 2022
Z in Crore
Property plant and eguipment (17.36)
Provision for doubtful debts 65.43
Total ( 10.92!
Other comprehensive income/(expenses) Period Ended
31st March 2022
¥ in Crore
Iterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans -49.77
Net Movement in regulatory deferral balances 49,77

Post-acquisition of business, the Company has decided to tredt pension and gratuity benefits payable to
erstwhile NESCO employees which were: continuing employment at the date of acquisition as defined
benefit plan under Ind AS 13 Employee Benefits. Consequently, the cost and liability of providing such
benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method (PUCM). Armiong other mattérs, the
application of PUCM results in recognition of remeasurement gain/ less, comprising items such as actuarial
gains and losses and effect of the asset ceiling, in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCL). The amount of
remeasurement gain/ loss fluctuates period on period based on changes in actuarial assumptions
including discount rate and mortality rate,

To ensure offsetting impact in the OCI and the Balance Sheet, the Company recognises equivaient
amount as Regulatory Deferral Account - Income/ expense in the OCI. The amount of Regulatory Deferral
Account - Incorne/ expense recognised In the OCI in this manner fluctuates in line with and in opposite
direction to the Remeasurement gain/ loss. Based on the Vesting Order, the Company will be allowed to
include and recover this amount as revenue from customers only when the amount is paid to the trust for
onward payment to employees.
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As At
NOTE 34 31st March 2022
Commitments: T'in crore
Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for. 193 65
Total 193.66

As per terms of the vesting order, the cumulative capital expenditura of Rs 1,270 crora (FY 22-28) has been committed, Further
commitmeants in respect of AT&C losses and past arrear collection have also been stated in the order.

NOTE 35 _
Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is & possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmzd only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of ope or more uncertain futlre events not wholly within the control of the enterprise are disclosed as
contingant liabliity and not provided for. Such liabllity is not disclosed if the possibility of outflow of resources fs remote.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
nort-occurrence of ene of more uncertait futire events rot wholly within the control of the antity, Contingent assets are not recognissd
but disclosed only when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Period ended
Particulars 31st March 2022
% in crore
35,1 Claims against the Company hot acknowleddsd as debts;
(i) Legal cases filed by consumers, employees and others Under |itigation 4,42
35.2 Direct tax matters related to FY 2016-17 and FY 2017-18 pending with CIT Appeals 44.73

35.3  Inhdirect tax matters
() Assessment order for FY 2014-15 to 2016-17 (upte 30th June 2017) was made by Principal 25.34
Comrmissioner GST and Central Excise, Bhubaneswar impuosing Service Tax penalty of Rs. 25.34 crores
on NESCO Utility U/s 78(1) of Finance Act 1994 after dropping the demand of Rs. 1.26 crores out of
total demand 26,59,85,498.00. Company contested the same by filing an appeal to CESTAT Kalkata.

No provision Is considered necessary since the Company expacts favourable dacisions.

35.3 Before acquisition, NESCO Utility was net identifying and tracking dues payable ta MSME vendors separately. Conseguently, it
was not tracking whether timely payments are being made to such vendors and/ or interest/ penalty, If any, payable for delay
in making payment. Post acquisition, the Company has initiated a process and identifiad MSME vendors based on confirmations
received. In the absence of adeguate data, the Company is unable to determine whether any interest of penalty is payable for
past default. The management will be able to'identify and recogrise such obligation, if any, based on claims received.

35.4 As per terms of vesting order all litigations pertaining to NESCO have been transferred to the Company. In case of any
unfavourable outcome the Company will be able to recover the liabllity through Aggregate Revenue Reguirement.

NOTE 36 _
Earnings per equity share (EPS)

Accounting policy

Basic earnings per equity share has been computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the reporting period attributable to eguity
‘shareholders by the weighted average number of equity sharas outstanding during the reporting period in accordance with Ind AS 33,
"Earnings-Per Share”. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the reporting peried attributable to equity
shareholders as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) refating to the
dllutive potential 2quity shares by the weightad aveérage number of equity shares outstanding during the feporting period as adjusted
ta the effects of all dilutive potential 2quity shares, except where rasults are anti-dilutive.
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The Company also presents Basic eariings per equity share In accordance with Ind AS 114, "Regulatory Deferrdl Accounts” which is
computed by dividing the prafit/{less) for the reporting period before and after ret movement in regulatory deferral account balance
atiributable to equity sharehelders by the weighted average number of eguity shares outstanding during the reporting period. Diluted
earnings per share is computed by dividing the the profit/(loss) for the teporting period before and aftér net movement in regulatory
deferral account balance attributable to equity sharehaolders as adjusted for dividend, Interast and other charges to expense or Income
(net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the reporting period as adjusted to the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where rasults are anti-
dilutive.

36.1 EPS - Continuing operati in latory income/expense) Period ended
Particulars Units 31st March 2022
a} Profit for the period ¥ Crore 73.92
b) Net movement in requlatory deferral account balance 2 Crore 27.19
¢} Income-tax attributable to requlatory deferral account balance Z Crore 6.84
d) Net movement In requlatory deferral account balance (net of tax) (b-c) ¥ Crore 20.35
&) Profit for the perind fram continuing operations attributable to equity shareholders before ¥ Crore 9436
net movement In regulatory deferral account balance .
f) Weighted average number of equity shares No. in Crore 25.12
g) Basic and diluted earnings: per equity share of Rs.10 each 3.75
h) Face value of equity shares: 10.00
36.2 S - Continuing operations (including regulatory income/expense) Period ended
Particulars Units 31st March 2022
a) Profit for the period from continuing operations after net movement In regulatory deferral % Crore 73.82
account balance attributable to equity shareholders: ] )
b) Weidhted average number of equity shares No. in Crore 25.12
¢} Basic and diluted earnings per equity share of ¥ 10 each 2.94

d) Face value of equity shares 10.60
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Hale 37

Ralated party disclosures
Names of related partles and raloted party relntionshipawhere contral exists
A

Holding company
The Tate Power Company Limied (TRPCL)

Promi sther with its idiary more than 20% in holding company
Tata Sons ana?a err:eu (Tata Sonst

y =xercising sig
GRDFD Lurn:':a:l

Fellow Subsidisries {with whom the company has lransactions)

Tata Powsr Southem Odigha Distribution Lig :,rPSCIDLp
IMsithon Pawar Limited [MPL}

Tt Powsr Central Odfieha Distahytion Ltd (TROODL)
Tata Pownt Westem Odisha Distribytion L [TPWEDL)
i Agmer Distribution. Limitied (TPADL)

Tota Power Delni Distribution Lia (TROOL)

Tola Puwsr Trading Company Lid(TPTCL)

Tala AlG Gengral Insurarice (Tatl AIG)

Tietz Capital Financial Services Lid (Tata Caonal)

Joint Vatiture of Heldirg Companyg {with whoim company has transactions)

Post retirement employee benofit trist
NESTO Emplayees Pangion trust
NESCO Employess Gralully trust
KESCO Employess Providenl Furd trust
NESCO Employees Rehabllitation st

Ky managsment personnel
Chief Executive Officer
Braskan Sarkar

Chigf Financial Officer
Siladitya Sengupia

Non-executive directors
Mr. Ao Ghosh

Wir. Kailnsh Nath-Sprvastavn
£ Arun Humar Panda

Mr. Ashok Kumar. Thipathy
Ms: Salys Gupia

Independant Directors

M Suresh Chandss Makapats
hir. Nikunja Binan Dhal, IAS
Kir, Triloohan Panda

Mr. Pravesr Smha

Mr.Sanjay Banga

Related party transactions

The fdllowing tahle provides the tatal amoun of ransaciions Tha) have basn antered i with refated parties for the relevant inanczl penad

a_ P

incrore

lars of trs ians with the ralated partiss

5 No.

Name of Related Party Nature of transactions

=l ol
Pariad Endad
31ut March 2022

Company Name - TRDDL R i ol Exp-[ E ot Loan | nsursncalTravelling)
Rmmburlmmnt of 'Capex Espuntes & Trankfor of Astets

Osputation, 114 Gontract Experises

Stafl related Liabilty/ Expenses ( Gratuily & ELIUL)

Ceirmpany Nama | TPLDODL Powst pufchaie sxpanses nil of rebals
Chmpany Mame | TPWODL Reélmibiremant of Emﬁnnm.;_;_up'uly of Materiale
Company Name - TRSOOL Bromurement of goodsilived assats/sarvices
Interent on Lodn reealvabis fram TRSODL
Reoovery of Loan given
Company Mamé | GRIDCS Pawer purthiass srpenses Gross
Rebate o
(53U of equity share camital
Sompany Nomg ; TRCL Issue-pf aquity shane cagital

Sompany Name | MPL Sralt refated Lty Exparsen

Company Nama - TATA-AIG: Pr Gl abodiifledd fiatiices

C_z:mpqny Mame - TATA Capaal Procursmant af Eunﬁm’l‘lmﬂ 2 vices

(eileiz}
244
m
247
087
0,25
232
043
16.58
1, 70447
1578
14452
15042
biog
LR

a.a7
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s : g Period Ended
S No. [Name of Related Party Mature of transactlons 21032022
100 | Company Naime - TPADL Prouursment of goodelized sasalssarvices: 001
11 | Company Name THEL Dtputalion 0,24
Ruimbunsinant of sxpenseh X 008
Staff related Lakillty! Expennes { Gratulty & ELUL) 202
12 NESCO Employess Pormon thust Curlhibpllan of Pariion 473
13 |MESEO Employess Gratuity inug Sontphution of Gratuity 1340
14 INESCQ Employess Frovident Fand trust Contribution of Provident Fund 356
16 [MNESGCO Employaes Renabiktation Fond trust Cantribiition of Rehaoilitation Fund 040
16 |Managersal an Inelyding dirsctars siting fas Managariat remunoration 234
Total 2048 57
b. Particulars of Ouistanding Payable/ Receivable with the related parties:
Sr ; : Period Ended
No Name of the Entity Nature of transactions 345t March 2022
1 |Shars Capitaj
The Tata Power Company Linited [TPCL) Share capital 16042
|GRIDCO Limited Shars capiial 144 52
2 |Trade Payable
GRIDCO Limited Power Purchase Cost 28230
3 |Other Recivahle
The Tata Power Company Limited {TPCL} Gratujly: & Annual Leave 1.84
TR Amer Dhatribution Limited (TPADL) Praturemant ol goods/it {hserices o0t
Tata Power Delhl Disiribution Lid (TRODL) Procuremsnt of goodu/fised assals/sarvices 018
Tata Ppwer Ceniral Qdisha Distrbution Lid (TRCQOL) Power Purchasa Casl p.as
Tatis Pownn Wastam Odisha Distribution Lo [TEWCDLY lig t ot goorta/fi vies 0324
Total 580.15
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NOTE 38

Fi ial Instr 1A ing classifications, Fair value mea: nts, Financial Risk L t and offsetting of financlal assetsand
liabliities ) '

This section ghves an overviaw of the significance of finandial instruments for the Camipany and provides additionsl infarmation on balance ‘sheet items that tantdin
financial Ingtruments.

The detalls af significant accounting policies, Including the citgria for rzcognitiop, the basls Bt measuramient and the-basis on' which incdime and sxpénsss are
tecdgnised in respact of each class of finencial asset, fimahcial lishility dnd equity nstiumeant are diselased In'the financial statemants:

{I} Accaunting classifications

The falr values of the financial assets anc llabllinies ars Included 3t the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in'a current tiansaction betwesn willldg

partles, othar than in a forced or liquidatien sale,

The following methods and assuimptions wera tsed to-estimate the Fair values:

3. The carrying smounts ol trade Fecelvables, cash ahd cash sguivalents, short term déposits, trade pay . payables for acquisition of praperty, plant and
‘efuipment, short terim. Ibans rom banks, financial institutions and others ars considered to be the same as their falr values, due to their short-term nature, Most
financigl assets and ligbilities of the Company as at the balance sheet date:are short term having far value equal tp amortised cost.

b, For financial assets and llabilities that are measured at falr value, the carrving amounts are equal to the fair values.

(ii) Fair Value measurements ) ) )

The Company wses the following herarchy far determining and diselesing the falr value af financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets ar liobilities,

Lavel 2 Inplts other than guatad prica ingluded within Lavel | that are abservable for the ssset or Uability, elther directly (2. as prices) or indirectly [lLe. derived
friam prices)

ILevel 3: Unabsarvable inplits for fair valuation of assets and liability

As'at March 31, 2022

Vall Classification Fair Value
Pacticulam Carrying Value FVIPL FYTOCI Amortised Cost Level 1 Level2  Level3
Financial assets
Trage recaivables 274.13 - . 274.13 - - .
Unbilled Revenue 227,52 = - 27.52
gther fimancial assats 10.B6 . - 10.86 - - -
Cash and cash squivalents 154,71 - - 154,71 - - -
Bahk balances other than [jil) above 711.92 = - 711.52 - = -
17375317 = =~ 1,379.13 = - B
Financial Liabilities ] = Classification Eair Value
Carrving Value FUTPL FvTOCI Amortised Cost Level 1 Level2 _ Level3
|Bolfrawings 226,72 - 226.72 - - -
Trade payables 536.72 - - 536,72 - - -
Qther financial Irsbilities 890,95 - - 880,98 - = =
L5431 - - 1,654.42 - - -

{iii} Capital Management & Gearing Ratio

For thie purpose of the Company's capital manags ; capital includes issued equity capital and all other eguity reserves attributable to the eguity holdars of the
Company. The Company's objsctivas for managihg capital camprise sefeguarding the business a5 a gring coneern, craating value for stakeholders and supparting the
development of the Company. In particdlar, the Company seeks to malhtain an adequate capitalisation that enables it to achieve 2 satisfactory return for
sharsholders and snsure access to axtemal sources of financing, In part by malntaining an adenuats rating.

The Campany's capital structure consiste ol net debb-and totad eguity. The Company intludes within net debt, intersst bearing borrowings, less cash and bank
balances-as detailed below. The position on reporting date is.summarisad inthe following table:

As at
Particulars 31st March 2022
i ¥ crore

‘Short-terrn borrowings: 226.72
Tatat Deht (a) _ 226.72
l.ese: Cash and bank balances (b) 154.71
Mel dabt ({c)=(a-b)} 72.01
Total squity (d) ) ) 368.87
Tatal 2quity and net dabt ({3)=(c+dl) 440.88
Net dabt to tota) i us nat debt ratio (% =(c)/(e)} 16%

I, Debt Is: defined as Nen-current borrowings (including current maturities) and Current Dorrowings (excluding denvative, financial guarantee coptracts and
contingent considerations) and interest accruad on Non-current and Current borgwihags.

il Eduity iz defined as Equity share capital, Unsscursd serpetual sdeuntizs arid other eduity.
[narder ta achieve this overall objective, the Cormpany’s capital management, amuongst other things, aims to ensure that it mests finanoal covenants attachad to

the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define: capital structure reguirements, Breaches in mesting the financial covenants would permit the bank to
immediately call loans and barrowings. There have been no significant breaches in the financisl covenants of any Interest-bearing loansand barmowing in the current

vear,
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(iv) Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Campany’s principal linancial (fabilltizs comprise borrowings, condumiers' sscirty depdasit, leass liabilities; trade and other payables and other financial liabilities,
The' main purpose of these financial Habilities is ta finance this Campany’s operations. The Company's principal financial assets include investments, loans, trade.and
otier receivables; cash and zash equivalents, other balances: with banks unbilled revenue and other financial assets that are denved directly from (€5 operations.

The s=nior management ofl ihe Company bvérseas these risks anc are managed |n accordance with the Companies policiés and risk objettives,

(v) Market Risk

M.a:ket rigk is the risk that changes In market prices will affect the CoMpany's Income df value of It's holding of financial Instrumrents. The objective of markst risk
! At I to manade and control market sk Within scceptable parameters, while optimising the rEbUin. AS at the reporting date, the Company does

nat have material fimancial assets of financial iabilities exposing it to significant: markat risk comprising foraign currency risk, interast rave risk and price risk,

Creditisk refers (o the nisk that 3 counterparty will default onlits contractus| obligations resulting in fmancial loss to the Company. The Company is exposed to credit
‘risk from It= aperating activities (primarily trade recelvablss and unbllled ray=nue) and ather financis! Instrument=.

Particulars Asat

31st March 2022

¥ crore

{a) Trade r=ceivables 274.13
(B) Unbilled revenue 227.52
() Oth#r financial assets 10.86
(d) Cash and cash equivalents £54.71
() Bapk balances other than above 71192
Totzl 1,379.13
In case of trade recsivables and unbilled revenue, senior manag of the Cam onitars overdue afmbunt an regular basis and take appropriata action,

Including farfalturs of seclpty dapesit and/ or discannection of aleckricity, to gat th'rmlv r.lues Mast of tHe cash and bank balancas of tha Company are with se.he.duigd
commarcial banks whare risk of defaultis low.

Lvii) Liguldity risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty In mesting abiligations associstad with finanicial Fabilities that are settled by delivering cash ar
another fi ial asset, The Company iquidity risk by mamtaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing fadilities, by continuously

manitoring farecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabllities. The Company has access ta a sufficient vanety of
sources of funding.

Tha fallgwing teble detajls the Compaiy's remaining contracti@l maturity for lts financial liabillties with agread répayment periods; Ignoring the call and réfinancing
ofitions Iahale with the y. The tables nave oesn drawn up based or the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on wiich’
‘the.Company can be reguired to pay. The tables include both interest and arincipal cash flows. The ampunis included below for varable interest rate-instruments for
non-dertvative liabilities s subject to change If thanges: n vanable interest rates differ to those estimates of interast rates determined at the entt of the reporting
period.

{Particulars Upto 1 year 1toS years S+ years Total

‘Az at 31 March, 2022 .

(2] Trade payables 536.7Z - - 536.72

(h] Short term barrowings 226.72 - - 226,72

(2] Gther financial fabilities ‘890,98 - - 89098 |
IIES‘;42 - - !.-‘554.42

/AS at the balancs shest dots, the Company has cash snd bank balances of Rs 1,275.58 trores which can be Used Lo meet its obligation, Iri case of requiremant, the
managemeant is confidgent of raising further finance as required to meet Its obligations. The Company has sccess to financing facilities as describad in note below. The
Company expects To Mest its obligations from operating cash flows and progeeds of matuning financial assets.
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NOTE 39
Business Combinations

39.4

39.2

39.3

Summary of Business Combination

The Company was incorporated on March 20,2021 under the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended), Pursuant to the vasting
order issued by the OERC dated March 25, 2021 ('Vesting Order'), the Company, acquired the business of distributing
power in Northern Orissa (Busmess] from the NESCO with effect from April 1, 2021 ('Vesting Date'). Accordingly, the
Company s a licensee to carry out the function of distribution and retall supply of electricity covering the distribution
circles of Balasare, Bhadrak, Baripada, Jajpur and Keonjhar In the state of Odisha for a period of 25 years effective from
April 1. 2021.

Details of purchase considerations, the net assets acquired are as follows :

The Company has accounted for this acquisition as a business combination in accordance with Ind A5 103 - 'Business
Combinations’. The acquisition date of business cambination is 1 April 2021. Total purchass consideration for the acquisition of
this business from NESCO is'7 250 crores.,

Particulars T crore
Equity Shares issued 250
Fair value of net assets acquired (Refer 39.03 below) 250
Goodwill -

The company has issued 25,00,00,000 equity shares at a price of ¥ 10 each on conversion of trade payables toward the
purchase consideration.

The assets and liabilities recognized as a result of business combination are as follows :

The following table summarises the fair values of assets and liabilites recognised -as a part of business combination wpon
finalisation of purchase price allocation in accordance with Ind AS 103 s as follows:

Particulars Carveout order
A. ASSETS
Non-current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1,473.42
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress 23.21
(€} Financial Assets )
Other Financial Assets 316.53
(d) Non-current tax assets 27.65
(e) Other non-current assels 16.37
Total Non-current Assets 1,857.18
Current Assets _
(&) Inventories 17.07]
(b} Financial Assets
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 306.63
(if) Bapk balances other than (iil) above 458.85
(iii) Other Financlal Assets 7.26
(iy) Trade recsivables -
{v) Unbllled receivables -
(c) Other Current Assets 31.96
Total Current Assets 821.77
TOTAL ASSETS (A) 2,678.95




Particulars Carveout order
B. LIABILITIES

Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities

(@) Provisions =
(b) Consumer Contribution towards Capital Assets 908.26
(c) Deferred tax liabilities{net)

(c) Other non-current liabilities 347.84
Total Non-current Liabilities 1,256.10

Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

{l)  Borrowings 370.05

(i) Trade Payables 50.47

{iify Other Financial Liabilities 729,24

{b) Other current liabilities 23.08

Total Current Liabilities 1,172.85

TOTAL LIABILITIES (B) 2,428.95
Regulatory Deferral Accourit-Liability =

C. Net Assets Acquired (A-B) 25

39.4 Trade Receivables )
No trade receivables have been transferred to the Company as part of business combination.

39.5 Additional explanations to Assets acquired and Liability Assumed
For the following assets and liabilities acquired from the NESCO, acquisition date records are incomplete/Unavallable and Under
reconcillation. Considering this and provisional fair valuation of assets and liabilities, it is pessible that the carrying amount of
assats and liabilities recognised in the financial statement may underga changes. Details of concerned assets and liabilities at the
acquisition date for which records are incomplete/unavailable are as below:

(a) Carrying amount of security deposits (classified under note 23 in the Balance Shaet) as per the general ledger is higher by
Rs. 19.36 Crores as comparad to balance as per customer ledger.

(b) Physical verification of items of praperty, plant and sguiprent (PPE) were not carried out by the managernent of the NESCO,
post-acquisition, the company has framed a regulsr programme for physical verification' of fixed assets. Fixed assets are been
physically verified by the management during the year.

(€} Vendar/customer details not available for the following items:

(i) Loans and advances given - Rs. 0.48 crores (Classified under Note 14 |n the Balance Sheet)

(i) Loans and advances given - Rs. 1.49 crores (Classified under Note 10 in the Balance Sheet)

(li)Grants fecelvable - Rs. 1.82 crores (Classified Under Note 10 In the Bajance Sheat)

(iv)Payable to Vendors - Rs.46.08 Crores (Classified under Note 22 in the Balance Sheet)

(v)Retention maney, Earnest money and Security deposit from others - Rs. 4.41 crores (Classified under Note 20 In the
Balance Sheet)

(vi) Gonsumers Cantribution for work = Rs.105,72 Crores (Classified under Note 19 In the Balance Sheet)

(d) Inventories were not entirely physically verified by the management of the NESCO, Post-acquisition, the managernent has
physically verified significant portion of inventories. No material discrepanciss were noticed on such physical verification.

(&) NESCO did not have any process for Identification of vendors as micro, small ahd medium’ enterprise (MSME) under the
MSMED Act. Post-acquisition, the company has initiated the process and rolled out MSME confirmation to all its vendors. Basad
on the responses received, the Company has identified MSME vendors and in the process of ensuﬁng necessary compliance with
the MSMED. Act.

The Company, with the NESCO management and the help of the OERC, Is in the process of reconciliation/resolving the above matters
and adjustments, if any, will be recognised post reconciliation and resolution of the matters. As stated above, the vesting order provides
that any change in the value of assets and liabilities transferred on account of recondiiiation/resolution of the above matters and/or any
ottier matter identified In future will be allowed to be recovered by the company in the manner specified in the vesting order. Hence, the
company belleves that the reconciliation/resolution of the above matters will not have any impact on the financial position and financial
performance of the Company as reflected in the financial statements.
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NOTE 40
Disclosure regarding details of assets created with Government Fund and used by TPNODL

As per details provided by the Odisha Power Transmission Company Limited (OPTCL) vide email dated April 25, 2022, Certain

assets were created for NESCO through different schemes formed by the government and executed by OPTCL. Based on
details shared by OPTCL, the carrying amount of such assets as of 31st March, 2021 is Rs,1,191.21 crores for completed
assets and Rs. 375.94 crores for work in progress{WIP). These are subject to detailed verification and reconciliation by various
authorities.

As per the Vesting Order, the ownership of these assets has not been transferred to the Company; however, it can continue to
use these assets fof supply of power to the consumer. Since the Company is hot able to charge any depreciation for these
assets in the ARR, the provisional fair value of these assets for the Company at the vasting date is nil. Details are given below:

Name of Scheme Compieted WIP Total
Biju Grama Jyotl Yojana(BGlY OPTCL DTR) 34.89 = 34.89
Deen Dayal Upadhyaya Gram Jlyoti Yojana (DDUGIY) 361.94. 6.42 368.36
Integrated Power Development Scheme (IPDS) 212.82 67.89 280,71
Integrated Power Development Scheme (IPDS-IT Phase IT) - 29.03 28.03
Odisha Distribution System Strengthening Project (ODSSP) 440.68 233.30 673.98
Odisha Dedicated Agricultural Fishery Feeder Project(QDAFFP) 13.10 38.30 5340
SOUBHAGYA 124.27 - 124.27
Rajiv Gandhi Grameen Vidyutikaran Yojana 3.51 - 3.51
Total 1,191.21 375.94 1,567.15
NOTE 41

Statement of past arrears collection and utilisation of proceeds

As per the Vesting Order, trade recelvables for pre-acquisition period are not transferred to the Company. However, the
Company as a collection agent needs to collect these receivables and use the same amount for paying obligations not
transferred to the Company. The Company performs these actlvities purely as an agent of NESCO. Based on information and
records maintained, the Company has made below collections and payments during the period ended March 31, 2022:

April 2021
Particulars to March 2022
Pra-vesting collection from consumers 136.59
Past arrear collections from consumers 191.47
Less : Incentive including GST earned as per vesting order - (18.70)
Net Coellection (A) 309.37
Payments related to Power Purchase for the month of March 2021
Bulk Supply Payment to GRIDCO Limited 156.02
Transmission Charges payment to OPTCL 12.05
SLDC Charges 0,08
Amount paid to GRIDCO 75.64
TDS an incentive income (0.45)
Pre-vesting vendor bills paid 8.38
Total Payments (B) 251.71
Net Receivable / (Payable) C=(B-A) as disclosed in 57.66
Note 23 (57.66)
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 42

Financial Ratios

Period ended |
SI No Ratios Numerator Denominator 31st March
2022
a) Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liability 0.81
b) Debt-equity ratio Total Debt Shareholder's Equity 0.61
. , Earning Available .
c) Debt service coverage ratio For detit. Service Debt Service 9.60
L ) o3 Average
d) Return on equity ratio Net Profit After Tax Shareholder's Equity 0.24
| Trade receivables turnover ratio | C/05iNd Balances of o) e 30.42
e) rade receivables turnover ratio |- _ D i obies :
i ; Closing Balances of
f) Trade payables turnover ratio Total Purchases Trade Payables 3.42
g) Net capital turnover ratio Net Sales Working Capital (8.06)
h) Return on capital employed Eamings Befole Capital Employed 0.24
: Interest and Taxes ' *
; Revenue (including
. |Net Profit Margin (%) including | ot Profit After net movement in
D exceptional item Tax{including regulatory deferral Rl 2
ep exceptional item) ba?ancésr)\(
_ y Revenue (including
; Net Profit Margin (%) excluding Net Profit %ﬁer net movement in :
) exceptional item g pxcuding regulatory deferral 272 '
SRR exceptional item) baglian::e'sr)y

As explained in note related to financial instruments , the company has access to sufficient liquidity
resources to continue its operations for at least 12 months from the date of approval of financial
statements
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NOTE 43
Segment Reporting

The Company is engaged (n the business of distribution of power in Narthern part of Odisha, Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) reviews the
financial infarmation of the Company as a whele for decision making and accordingly the Company has a single reportable segment.

There is no consumer from whom the Campany has not earned more than 10% of revanue

Note 44

Relationship with Struck off Companies

The Company does ot have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended) or section 560
‘of Companies Act, 1956,

NOTE 45

Social Security Code

Thie Code 'on Social Security 2020 has been notified in' the Official Gazette on 28th Ssprember, 2020, The effective 'date from ivhich the changes are
applicable Is yet to be notified and the rules are yet to be framed. Iinpact if any of the change will be assessed and accountad in the period in which
said Code becorhes effactive @nd the rules fraimed thereunder ara notified.

NOTE 46
Other Statutory Information
{a) The Company has acquired power distribution business fram NESCO and accounted for proparty, plant and eguipment (PPE) as well other
current and ron-current assets/ liabilities sequired at thie acquisition’ date fair value using principies of Tnd AS 103 Business Cambination. The
said fair valuation was done by a regjstered valueér . In the current year, the Company has recsived additicnal equity in the form of PPE from
one of the sharehalder and recognlzed such PPE at the acguisitioh date value using valuation determined by a registérsd valuer. In both the
cases, the acquisition date fair values are tréated as cost of acquisition, Hence, the C'qmpanir has not revalued its PPE or any other assats,

{b) The Campany has not given any loans or advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and/ or related parties (as
defined under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person, that are repayable on demand, or without specifying
any terms or perigd of repayment,

fe} No proceedings have been initiated or are pending agamst the Company for holding any benami property under the Benaml Transactions:

(Profibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thersunder.

(d) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction of charges which are yet to be registersd with the Registrar of Companies (ROC)
bayond the statutary period.

(e) The Company has not heen declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender,

(f) The Company does not have any tiansactions Wwith companies strick off Under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended) or
section 560 of Companies Act, 19556,

fg) The Compary is in compliance with the number of [ayers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companias (Restriction an number of Layars) Rules, 2017 {as amended),

(R} The Company has neither traded nor it holds any investmient It Crypto currericy or Virtual Currency.

(I} The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persons or entities, Including foreign entities {Intermediaries) with'

the understandingd that the Intermediary shall:
(1) Directly or Indirectly. lend or Invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on bshalf of the company
{Uitimate Beneficiarles) or
(i) Provide any guarantee, security or the fike to or on bahalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(§) The Company does not have any transaction which [s not recorded in the books of accounts but has been surtendered or disclosed as Income

© during the year In the tax assessments Under the Income Tax Ack, 1961 (such as, search or survey of any other relevant provisions of the

Incorme Tax Act, 1961).

(k) Wherever required, the Company has filed necessary returns/statements with banks and the said retums/statements are in agraement with
the books of accounts of the Company. No material discrepancies exists.
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NOTE 47 Company Secretary Appointment

As per Section 203{1) of the Companles Act 2013 (as amended) read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014, carmpanies with pald-up share capital of Bs 10 crores or mare are required to appoint a whole fime Company Secratary. Accordinaly, the
company is coversd under this requirement and required to apopint a whole time Company Secratary from the current period cnwards, Howaver the
company Is in the process of appointing a Comgany Secratary,

NOTE 48 _
Significant events after the reporting period
There were no significant adjusting events that occurred subsequent Lo the reporting peripd other than the events disclosed in the relevanit nates:

NOTE 49
Approval of financial statements )
The financlal statements were approved for issue by the board of directors on 28th April, 2022,
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